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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

REVENUE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the audited annual results of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

I.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

In 2017, the Chinese government insisted upon the general keynote of
making progress while maintaining stability, and pioneering amidst the
“new norms” in economic development with new development
concepts. Emphasizing structural reforms of the supply aspect and
focusing on the enhancement of quality and efficiency, the government
deepened reforms and innovation and strengthened policy
implementation. The economy was running within a reasonable range
with a trend of positive development amidst stability becoming
increasingly apparent. In 2017, the national gross domestic product
reached RMB82.7 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 6.9%.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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During the reporting period, with substantial growth in sales volume, the
heavy-duty truck market exhibited an obvious trend of recovery,
delivering sales of 1,117,000 units in total, representing a year-on-year
increase of 52.4%. Such increase was driven by a multitude of
favourable factors including the implementation of the new anti-
overloading policies, the fostering of PPP (Public Private Partnership)
projects, and the acceleration of fixed asset investments. Under such
influence, during the reporting period, the Company reported sales of
370,000 units of heavy-duty truck engines, representing a year-on-year
increase of 86.9%, and a market share of 33.1%, representing an
increase of 6.1 percentage points from the corresponding period of last
year, maintaining its leading position in the industry. Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Company Limited (BRFEERR5EBE AR A7), a controlling
subsidiary of the Company, reported an aggregate sales of 149,000
units of heavy-duty trucks for the year, representing a year-on-year
increase of 81.3%, maintaining its position as the top fourth player in
the heavy-duty truck market of the PRC with remarkable increase in
market share and exemplifying the augmented advantage brought forth
by the complete-vehicle business. Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. (BRFE)E L
HEEtR AR AEAT), a controlling subsidiary of the Company, has
further consolidated its leading position in the industry with its
aggregate sales of 835,000 units of gear boxes, representing a year-on-
year increase of 66.8%.

In 2017, fixed-asset investments in the PRC (excluding agricultural
households) reached RMB63.17 trillion, representing a year-on-year
growth of 7.2%, and a drop of 0.9 percentage points in growth rate
year-on-year. The total planned investments for newly-commenced
construction projects reached RMB51.91 trillion, representing a year-on-
year growth of 6.2%. Investments in property development reached
RMB10.98 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 7%, and an
increase of 0.1 percentage points in growth rate year-on-year. As such,
during the reporting period, the construction machinery industry
achieved a reviving growth, delivering sales of 584,000 units in the
entire construction machinery industry (including electric fork-lift trucks),
representing a year-on-year increase of 47.0%, among which the sales
volume of wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes was 61,500
units, representing a year-on-year increase of 45.0%. The Company sold
a total of 56,600 units of engines for wheel loaders with a load capacity
of 5 tonnes, representing a year-on-year increase of 76.1%, further
consolidating its leading position in the market of wheel loaders with a
load capacity of 5 tonnes.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

During the reporting period, under the influence of the state’s
macroeconomic policies, the passenger vehicles market of the PRC
maintained its downward trend as in previous years, with accumulated
sales of 527,000 units, representing a drop of 3% year-on-year. Among
such, the market of large-sized passenger vehicles reported accumulated
sales of 94,000 units, representing an increase of 4.1% year-on-year.
The medium-sized passenger vehicle market suffered a serious drop in
sales, with accumulated sales of 85,000 units which represented a year-
on-year decrease of 14.6%. The light passenger vehicle market, which
commanded larger market share, reported accumulated sales of 348,000
units, representing a decrease of 1.5% year-on-year. During the
reporting period, with its efforts in adjusting product structure and
strengthening marketing promotion, the Company’s cumulative sales of
engines for use in large-sized and medium-sized passenger vehicles
amounted to 22,000 units, representing a year-on-year increase of
1.4%.

During the reporting period, the Company adhered to the market-
oriented approach and accelerated structural adjustments of products
and businesses, thereby enhancing its market competitiveness and
maintaining a relatively fast development momentum. In 2017, the
Company reported a sales figure of 56,000 units of WP13 products,
representing a growth of 2.6 times year-on-year, and becoming a
dominating product for commercial vehicles of large exhaust volume. In
the first year of its sale launch, the newly upgraded strategic product
WPIOH/WP10H recorded a sales figure of 29,000 units and won positive
feedbacks from customers. Yangchai “Sharp Power” products recorded
sales of 102,000 units for the year, representing a growth of 17.5%.
The sales of engines for use in agricultural equipments increased by
83.1% year-on-year to 28,000 units. The sales of engines for use in
industrial equipments increased by 78.6% year-on-year to 11,000 units.
During the same period, Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a
controlling subsidiary of the Company, had balanced its business
development in the aspects of dump trucks, tractors and cargo-carriers.
Heavy-duty trucks powered by natural gas continued to maintain a
leading position and formed competitive advantage in a number of
market segments. Building upon its solidified medium-duty and heavy-
duty truck businesses, Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. continued to expand
its market shares in large to medium-sized passenger vehicles, achieving
remarkable effects in its structural adjustments. For strategic products
such as S-series gear boxes, AT/AMT and speed reducers, scalable sale
has been in place, with new-energy transmission system being
developed and introduced.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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During the reporting period, the Company grasped strategic
opportunities and fostered its solid efforts in various aspects, achieving
rapid development with substantial growth in its major economic
indicators, along with marked increase in its overall strengths and
competitiveness. Firstly, the Company continued to make strategic
structural adjustments in a steady pace. Grasping opportunities and
making scientific arrangements, the Company continued to enhance and
optimize its products and stepped up its efforts in market expansion.
While multifold growth was achieved in new strategic products and
strategic markets, traditional products and markets also saw remarkable
growth in the course of steady progression of structural adjustments.
Secondly, adhering to innovative development, the Company fully
expedited the pace of scientific innovation in terms of reforms of
technology systems and mechanisms, by creating a fervent technological
eco-system of creativity and establishing overseas innovation centres for
forward-looking innovation projects, hence paving way for the “going
high-end” strategic development. Thirdly, the Company deepened its
business consolidation and achieved sound development in its overall
overseas business development, with an increased pace of overseas
development and global coverage of its strategic businesses. The
acquisition of shares of the U.S.-based PSI Inc. has built a sound platform
for the Company’s entry into the U.S. market. The China-Belarus
Industrial Park in Belarus, invested by a joint venture formed by Weichai
and the Minsk Automotive Plant (MAZ) laid foundation for the
development of another key base for the localized manufacturing of
Weichai’s overseas engines and the fostering of international
cooperation in production capacity. Fourthly, the Company made
scientific arrangements for its operation. Through sales activities such as
“Work hard 100 days to achieve production and sales volume of
180,000 units” and "Attain sales volume of 300,000 units in the first
half of the year”, the Company mobilized all staff members to expand
market, secure sales orders and capture high production and achieved
an overall success.

Towards the end of 2017, the Company issued its strategy for the period
of 2020 to 2030, under which the traditional businesses of the
Company will have to outperform the global top standards by 2020 and
the new energy business of the Company will have to become a global
industry leader by 2030. We will benchmark our own performance in
terms of customer satisfaction, shareholders’ return, staff happiness and
corporate social value against global top-notch enterprises and forge
ourselves into a well-respected company.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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During the reporting period, the Company’s revenue increased by
62.7% compared with that in 2016 to approximately RMB151,569
million. The net profit attributable to shareholders of the listed company
was approximately RMB6,808 million, representing a substantial increase
of 178.9% compared with that in 2016. The basic earnings per share
was RMBO0.85, representing an increase of 178.9% compared with that
in 2016.

DIVIDENDS

Putting shareholders’ interests and returns as its top priority, the
Company has maintained a relatively stable dividend policy. On 28
March 2018, the Company’'s 2017 profit distribution proposal was
approved by the Company’s seventh meeting of the fourth session of
the Board: the Company proposed the distribution to all shareholders of
a cash dividend of RMB2.50 (including tax) for every 10 shares held,
based on the total share capital of 7,997,238,556 shares, without any
capitalisation of reserve. Completion of the proposal is subject to the
consideration and approval by the 2017 Annual General Meeting. Please
refer to the further announcement to be issued by the Company for
details on the closure of registers of members in determining the
shareholders who are eligible for the final dividend.

AcQuISITION AND CONSOLIDATION

In March 2017, the Company approved the entering into of a share
purchase agreement by Weichai America Corp., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, with the U.S.-based Power Solutions
International, Inc. (hereinafter, “PSI Inc.”), for the purchase of 2,728,752
ordinary shares and 2,385,624 preferred shares (convertible into
4,771,248 ordinary shares in the future) of PSI Inc., with a total
investment of USD60 million. In November 2017, upon full conversion of
the aforesaid preferred shares into ordinary shares, the Company,
through Weichai America Corp., held shares representing 40.7% of the
total issued share capital of PSI Inc. and became its largest shareholder.
Pursuant to the agreement, 18 months after the completion of the
above transaction, Weichai America Corp. may exercise a call option to
further increase its holding in PSI Inc. to 51%. With PSI Inc.’s technology
and experience, existing customer base, sales channels, and service
networks in North America, the Company can quickly enter the North
American market. Through positively participating in the competition of
the North American power system market, the Company can enhance its
level of market penetration and brand influence.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

IV. OuTLOOK AND PROSPECTS
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In 2018, the global economy is expected to grow at a rate of 3.6%, an
increase from 3.2% in 2017. International trade, which has been
hindered since the financial crisis, will witness a period of rapid growth
and become a major force in driving and speeding up the worldwide
economic growth. The “America First” stance taken by the United States
government will stimulate a continual recovery of the U.S. economy in
the short run, yet at the same time bring tremendous impact to the
global capital flow and division of labour for industries. In Europe, with
the receding European debt crisis, an overall trend of recovery is
expected to continue. For emerging markets and developing economies,
the adjustments over the past years will be followed by augmented
growth dynamics and economic growth is expected to be more rapid in
future. The East Asian and South Asian regions will remain the world’s
most vivid economies with the highest pace of growth. In Mainland
China, the report on the 19th People’s Congress issued by the
Communist Party of China has identified the ambitious goals for the two
phases of China’s economic development, pointing to the change from
a growth phase of high speed to one of high quality and highlighting
the importance of developing the real economy, to which key resources
should be drawn, policy measures should be tilted and more work focus
should be turned, exemplifying China government’s emphasis on the
real economy. It is anticipated that the economic growth in China will
remain steady, with a growth rate of approximately 6.5% on a full-year
basis.

The Company is cautiously optimistic about the development trend of its
related industries. In 2018, affected by the high base-figure and
economic policy in 2017, it is expected that while the heavy-duty truck
market will see some decrease in the pace of growth, it will continue
running within a high range, which is mainly attributable to the
following reasons. Firstly, with the continual growth in infrastructure
investment, the newly-commenced infrastructure construction projects
pursuant to the “One Belt and One Road” initiative and the increase in
the volume of construction projects in free-trade zones, there will be a
gradual revival in the market demand for construction vehicles. Secondly,
the restrictions on the use of China Ill Emission Standards vehicles, the
clean-up of the hazardous chemicals market, the tightened management
over the measurement and overloading of trucks and the weighing of
trucks in the licensing process will bring forth an accelerated
replacement cycle, and hence resulting in a faster upgrade within the
market and a more obvious trend for efficient logistics transportation to
go high-end. Thirdly, with the emergence of e-commerce logistical
planning, the development of logistics industry will become more
efficient and standardized. The sales volume of high-speed, standardized
vehicles models will gradually increase together with the rising demand
for high-emission volume, high-powered vehicles.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

In 2018, buoyed by factors such as investments in infrastructure and the
demand for equipment upgrades and the rebound of overseas market
demand, the construction machinery industry will recover continuously.
It is expected that the cumulative annual sales will exceed 636,000 units,
representing a year-on-year growth of more than 9%. In terms of
international market conditions, the ‘One Belt and One Road’ initiative
drives interconnection among infrastructure and growth of infrastructure
construction and China’s foreign engineering contracts will speed up
with the substantial demand. The Trump administration has
implemented proactive fiscal policies and stepped up infrastructure
construction, creating substantial strategic development opportunities in
overseas markets. Domestically, with the implementation of proactive
fiscal policy in the PRC, investment in construction of infrastructure will
remain in a high range, and PPP projects will be more promptly
implemented. With higher shortcomings in infrastructure and civil
aspects in the PRC, the industry is in urgent need of reform and
upgrade, which will drive sales growth in the industry. It has been seven
to eight years since the last peak of the construction machinery industry.
Having entered into the cycle of upgrade and replacement, there will be
larger room to meet such upgrade demands in the next two to three
years.

Currently, with increasingly stringent regulations on emission levels, the
upgrade of technologies has also been speeding up. With effect from 1
January 2018, the China V Emission Standards will apply to the
manufacturing, importing, sale and registration of all diesel-driven light
vehicles in China. As such, some segments of the market will experience
a new round of shuffling and the elimination of backward production
capacities will be accelerated. Leveraging upon the synergy presented by
its globally coordinated research and development, advanced technology
in smart manufacturing, product and service diversity, and its strong
base of loyal customers, the Company has actively responded by starting
its preparation work in advance. Having essentially completed the
upgrade and replacement of its engine products, the Company is poised
to maintain its leading position in the market of high-power engines and
heavy-duty gear boxes. The Board has full confidence in the
development prospect of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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In 2018, adhering to the main theme of “robust and stable growth of
high quality”, the Company will work towards better profitability via
technological enhancement of its products and adopt the change from a
sales-driven approach to a product-driven approach. In particular, the
Company will work strenuously on the following:

Firstly, the Company will continue to solidify its focus on customer
orientation, make good use of the advantage of its product mix, further
expedite structural adjustments and seek breakthroughs in strategic
markets, consolidate its leading position in traditional business markets,
and work diligently towards the pre-determined annual sales target.
Secondly, the Company will step up its investment in research and
development (R&D) and speed up its R&D progress, meeting standards
of the top players in the world, moving towards high-end in general
building products with the best core competitiveness, and achieving
breakthroughs and pioneering development in core technologies
through a series of key R&D projects. Thirdly, the Company will continue
to uplift the operating capability of its overseas entities, augment
resources sharing, deepen exchanges and cooperation, expedite business
integration, enhance the ability of collaboration, and speed up the
localized implementation of technology developed in China. Fourthly,
the Company will accelerate the industrial implementation of its new-
energy business and foster the construction of industrial parks for new-
energy power industry. Fifthly, the Company will carry out
comprehensive innovation of its talent recruitment mechanism, explore
the possibility of implementing share incentive schemes, talent
recruitment incentive systems, etc., to create the optimal competitive
platform for the aggregation of talents and incentivize energy for
innovation of the entire team to enhance the core competitiveness of
the Company. Sixthly, the Company will strengthen management and
control of operational risks, with a focus on expediting the process of
transformation to high-quality development by uplifting profitability,
lowering gearing ratio and guarding against risks. Seventhly, the
Company will benchmark itself against top players, consolidate
resources, and make thorough use of technology including big data,
smart manufacturing, mobile internet, cloud computing and internet of
things, to expedite transformation towards a smarter, more networked
and more digitized direction and achieve full-value-chain management
of the Company.

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. MLahhBRMNDBERLD

FTRHESE (88)

20185 ARRBAIGEENTERRE
iR ATE RE2HEHERE R
By BEERRWEERTANEE
N BRI AT TE:

—REBR(LCEFPER BEEMESR
BE E-—SNREEFEMBEED
LR ZREREBH TS AL
BATKEFHERR  —RMAHE
BA-RRERMEER HEEER R
PEEBASR  2NTERAZLHEF
NER BE-—RINEHTHRERE &
BRORMOHRBEESR ZR—IFEIR
SENPEEERS MARERALE
RIEZREIE MREBES - BT
[F) {F B 8E 77 - N R B EE L Bl 5% 3 - 10
EMMEFEEREHEREM - HEEH
ERBIEXEER - AE2HAIH
AZ sl B#H - RRE R E B
AT ERBEEE TERAD
FH RELERRENATEESH
BEZERFEN RARRARLEST
AeRNEMBRKERBER  EHLE
FrENMEN BREEBEXR HHEER=
BErEMRAEESEEREL - L2H
BREE BRER RABRBKEE-
BRBE BHEHB EHE D
WERM - MRS s WEL BT
ftER - BRAREZEERERE -



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

V. APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to all
our shareholders, the general public and our customers for their care
and support, as well as to all of our staff for their hard work and
dedication in the past year!

Tan Xuguang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS SIBE5ismEniy

FERARSARERNE - —+F =1
SRR ERENHES
B HE T

The Directors are pleased to present a management discussion and analysis of
the annual results of operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 as follows:

I. INDUSTRY ANALYSIS BE
The Company is one of the vehicle and equipment manufacturing ARBEFREGEAENRBHNARE &“*
conglomerates in the PRC with the best comprehensive strengths. It is a BREEXSEE 2 — B AKX
leading company in the markets of powertrain, complete vehicles and BEE RBEZESHMAESEETFREE ?’?
machines, hydraulic controlling parts and automotive electronics and MEBEERA EERTEMNEEHHE -
parts and components. It is equipped with the most comprehensive FRENEBFBHEENETSRE -
supply chain of engines, gear boxes and axles and offers related after- K - AEBEEEGREREEYR AT
sales market services. Meanwhile, the Group is actively developing PRt T EBEMRITE-
intelligent logistics to provide comprehensive solutions to its customers.
1. Heavy-duty Vehicle Industry 1. BERREITE
In 2017, the economy continued to improve in the midst of RZZE—+F FEBFRFEE
stability as the Chinese government insisted upon the general Pk TIERER  WEEHSG
keynote of making progress while maintaining stability, AlEBEMERE THRERSEEN
emphasized structural reforms of the supply aspect and continued W RBETREBRRGT - EF
with the enhancement of quality and efficiency. Last year, the & NEERBREBEEARKS7
gross domestic product of the PRC reached RMB82.7 trillion, BRI RALIER69% - FENA
representing a year-on-year growth of 6.9%. Under the influence BERER  RFA & E X (Public
of a number of favorable factors, such as the implementation of Private Partnership[PPP ) I8 B it -
anti-overloading policies, the progress of Public Private Partnership TEEREARREENAEXZRE
(“PPP") projects and the acceleration in investments in fixed Z EANERTHHESEREER
assets, the sales volume in the domestic heavy-duty truck market 2FERBEENINIEH B
witnessed a substantial growth. The aggregate sales figure of the B R#52.4% °
heavy-duty truck market in the year was approximately 1,117,000
units, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
52.4%.
16 WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. a8 NiRNBERLD



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Construction Machinery

During the reporting period, fixed-asset investments in the PRC
(excluding agricultural households) reached RMB63.17 trillion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 7.2%. The total planned
investments for newly-commenced construction projects reached
RMB51.91 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 6.2%.
Investments in property development reached RMB10.98 trillion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 7%. As such, positive
growth resumed in the construction machinery industry. In 2017,
the construction machinery industry (including electric forklift
trucks) reported sales of approximately 584,000 units,
representing a year-on-year growth of 47.0%, among which, the
sales volume of wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes for
use in large construction machinery was approximately 61,500
units, representing an increase of approximately 45.0%.

Passenger Vehicle Market

In 2017, the passenger vehicle market exhibited an ongoing
downturn as a result of the continuous influence of China’s
national express rail taking up the share of the transportation
market and the implementation of macroeconomic policies in the
country during the reporting period. The sales volume of
passenger vehicle market for the year was 527,000 units,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 3%.

Forklift Truck and Supply Chain Solutions Industry
During the reporting period, international trade increased on the
back on the revival of the global economy, increase in investing
activities, robust development of electronic commerce and wide
application of industrial 4.0 technology. The forklift truck and
supply chain solutions industry recorded a strong growth, with
augmented capital expenditure being made by industry players for
various uses including expansion of warehousing capacity, forklift
truck equipments and the installation of automated systems.
Global sales orders for forklift trucks increased from approximately
1.185 million units last year to approximately 1.397 million units
this year, representing a year-on-year growth of approximately
17.9%. In particular, Central and South America, Asia-Pacific and
Eastern Europe achieved strong growth, increasing by
approximately 29.8%, 28.5% and 21.6% respectively from the
corresponding period of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) SIREBImANIT (8)

IT. THE GROUP’S BUSINESS o REKEBEZER
An analysis of the Group’s business segments is set out in Note XIV.2 to AEBEXBEDBZOMEAREGHYEH
the consolidated financial statements. The following is an overview of BERMETE 2-AKEEXTEEMLZ
the operating conditions of the major products of the Group: AR

18

Sale of Diesel Engines

For Use in Heavy-duty Trucks

The Group is the largest supplier of diesel engines among major
manufacturers of heavy-duty trucks with a load capacity of 15
tonnes (and above) in the PRC. In 2017, the sales volume in the
heavy-duty truck market saw a significant growth, with the
Company having sold a total of approximately 370,000 units of
heavy-duty truck engines (2016: approximately 198,000 units),
representing a substantial year-on-year growth of approximately
86.9%. The Company maintained its leading position in the
heavy-duty truck auxiliary market with its market share of 33.1%
(2016: approximately 27%), representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 6.1 percentage points.

1. HEKHBAK

ARERKE
AEBEEFPBEEHESI15H R E
ERAREFERIEFHREALEM
BEREF - E T —+tFHM
ERMEHEHEEARE R AalH
HEERAZRHHUNIT0ES(Z
T—XF:H19884) B KX
B R 4869% EERMHEE
HHEEBIR (ZE—RNF L
27%) Bt EFA A6 1EE » B
THEE WA -

For Use in Construction Machinery AR T FE# W
The Group is also the largest supplier of diesel engines among REB MR EEHESSM TR
major manufacturers of construction machinery (mainly wheel BH(ETEZEABAELHBHEE

loaders) with a load capacity of 5 tonnes in the PRC. Out of the
diesel engines sold during the year, approximately 56,600 units
(2016: approximately 32,000 units) were engines for wheel
loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes, representing a significant
increase of approximately 76.1% compared to that in the
corresponding period last year. The Group’s market share
increased further, maintaining its leading position in this sector.

For Use in Passenger Vehicles

During the period, despite unsatisfactory performance of the
large-sized and medium-sized passenger vehicle market, with the
Company’s efforts in adjusting product structure and
strengthening marketing promotion, the Company’s aggregate
sales of engines for use in large-sized and medium-sized passenger
vehicles amounted to approximately 22,000 units, representing a
marginal year-on-year increase of approximately 1.4%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Forklift Trucks Production, Warehousing
Technology and Supply Chain Solution Services
Benefiting from the strong growth of the forklift truck industry
and the leading position of KION Group AG (“KION") in electric
forklift truck and the European market, the Group reported an
increase of orders for forklift trucks from approximately 178,300
units last year to approximately 201,400 units this year,
representing a year-on-year growth of approximately 13.0%.
During the reporting period, KION actively intensified the “2020
Strategy” and sought to develop it into the “KION 2027"
Strategy, and expedited the integration of the Dematic business
line for better synergy. The full-year results of Dematic was
consolidated to the Group for the first time in 2017. Before
elimination of intra-group sales, the forklift trucks production,
warehousing technology services and supply chain solution
services business contributed sales revenue of approximately
RMB58,493 million to the Group during the reporting period,
representing a significant increase of approximately 42.4% from
approximately RMB41,063 million last year.

Sale of Heavy-duty Trucks
During the year, the Group sold approximately 149,000 units of
heavy-duty trucks, representing an increase of approximately
81.3% from approximately 82,000 units in the corresponding
period in 2016. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited (B&7G
EARTBEARRAR]), a controlling subsidiary of the Company,
maintained its top fourth position in terms of sales in the domestic
heavy-duty truck industry and strived to achieve top three. Before
elimination of intra-group sales, the truck business contributed
approximately RMB47,351 million to the Group’s revenue this
year.

Sale of Heavy-duty Gear Boxes

During the year, the Group sold approximately 835,000 units of
heavy-duty gear boxes, representing an increase of approximately
66.8% compared to the approximately 501,000 units of heavy-
duty gear boxes sold in the corresponding period in 2016,
maintaining a stable leading position in the industry. Before
elimination of intra-group sales, the gear boxes business
contributed approximately RMB13,245 million to the Group's
revenue this year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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5. Sale of Parts and Components of Engine and Heavy-
duty Trucks and Hydraulics Controlling Parts
Apart from the production and sale of diesel engines for trucks
and construction machinery, heavy-duty trucks and heavy-duty
gear boxes, the Group is also engaged in the production and sales
of engine parts and components and other truck parts and
components such as spark plugs, axles, chassis, air-conditioner
compressors, hydraulic controlling parts, etc. During the Year, the
Group's sales of parts, components of engines and trucks and
hydraulic controlling parts increased by approximately RMB602
million from approximately RMB3,564 million in the corresponding
period of last year to approximately RMB4,166 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 16.9%.

Last year, the Company budgeted that sales revenue in 2017 would be
approximately RMB107 billion, representing a growth of approximately
15%. The actual sales revenue was approximately RMB151.6 billion,
representing a significant year-on-year increase of approximately 62.7%.
The actual sales revenue largely exceeded the budgeted sales revenue by
approximately RMB44.6 billion or 41.7%, mainly because the Company
maintained a steadfast commitment in serving the market and expedited
the structural upgrade of products and businesses, thereby boosting its
market competitiveness on an ongoing basis and capturing market
opportunities. Meanwhile, the general positivity in the Group’s overseas
businesses and the global reach of its international development strategy
contributed positively to the Group’s businesses.

As China migrates from a stage of high-speed growth to a stage of
high-quality development, it is anticipated that its economic growth will
remain stable in 2018, with an annual growth rate of approximately
6.5%. Driven by international trade, the global economy is expected to
grow at a higher pace of 3.6%. The “High-quality Proactive and Robust
Growth” initiative has been proposed by the Company and the Group
will work strenuously to achieve the corporate goal under the “2020 to
2030 Strategy”. As at 31 December 2017, orders on hand amounted to
approximately RMB29.2 billion. The Company budgets a sales revenue
growth of approximately 10.0% for 2018 to approximately RMB166.7
billion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

ITI. FINANCIAL REVIEW
The Group'’s Results of Operations

1.

a.

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased substantially by
approximately RMB58,385 million or approximately 62.7%
from approximately RMB93,184 million in 2016 to
approximately RMB151,569 million in 2017. This was
primarily attributable to the substantial growth of the heavy-
duty truck market in China, the continual expansion of the
Group’s market share resulting from ongoing product
innovation, and the consolidation of the full-year results of
Dematic. In particular, the revenue from principal operations
increased by approximately 62.3%, from approximately
RMB91,148 million in the previous year to approximately
RMB147,929 million for the Year. Other revenue increased
by approximately 78.8%, from approximately RMB2,036
million in the previous year to approximately RMB3,640
million for the Year.

Profit from Principal Operations

During the Year, the Group generated profit from principal
operations in the amount of approximately RMB32,787
million, an increase of approximately 56.3% from
approximately RMB20,981 million recorded in the
corresponding period in 2016, primarily attributable to the
increase in revenue from principal operations. For the forklift
trucks production, warehousing technology and supply
chain solution services segment, the increase in raw material
prices and the weak Euro led to the decrease in the profit
margin of the principal operations. However, the Group’s
focus on product research and development, expedited
adjustment of product and business structure, as well as
increasing competitiveness have contributed to the Group’s
stable profit margin of its principal operations at
approximately 22.2%.

B2 B 51 cm 8 5y iifr (4&)

~ 8185 0 B8
1.

REEZEKEXA

a.

WA
AEBMR-_ZT—tFEEE
WA AR®I515698 &
T EZE-XR"FREAMLY
AR ®93,184H & T KX I8 1
E# ANR#583855H & T
Bt R #627% - =B F
BREANERTS KRG
RSB ERDTEHE HE
MBEHEXRTHREAME
ffDematicE F ¥ 4E - E >
TEERRABREFREN
AR 148FE T A
He23%ERFEHMH AR
147,929 B &L - H B K
A ANR#E3640HE T
EFRBEMHARE2036H
BIL EFH4788% -

FEEFFE

REAFE REBXTEER
FIEH AR, 787TEE T
- XEREHHA
R#¥2981B8E LT EKH
563% TERXEBEREE
¥ AN X B AEE-
EEREMEHEER RS E
R %5 iR $2 B R A BHE M8 A
MEL TR SS - FREE &%
BREETR - BEAEEE
BHEEA - NREREE
MEBEBRAR BFHT
BiIRfH FEBEXTEEBKA
HEEMRIFIRTH22.2% °

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 43R 21



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately
35.2% to approximately RMB10,338 million in the Year
from approximately RMB7,645 million in the corresponding
period of 2016. The increase of distribution and selling
expenses was primarily attributable to the increase in after-
sales expenses and products return fee resulting from the
substantial increase in sales revenue. However, with strict
control over expenses and the effect of the economies of
scale, the distribution and selling expenses as a percentage
of revenue decreased from approximately 8.2% in the
corresponding period of 2016 to approximately 6.8% in the
Year.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by
approximately RMB1,950 million or approximately 25.5%
from approximately RMB7,652 million in the corresponding
period of 2016 to approximately RMB9,602 million in the
Year, which was mainly due to the consolidation of the full-
year results of Dematic and the Group’s increase in
technological development expenses. The general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue
decreased by 1.9 percentage points from approximately
8.2% in the corresponding period of last year to
approximately 6.3% in the Year.

Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) and
Adjusted Total Profit For Purchase Price
Allocation

During the Year, the Group's EBIT increased by
approximately RMB5,830 million or 113.6% to
approximately RMB10,960 million from approximately
RMB5,130 million in the corresponding period in 2016. The
increase was primarily attributable to the increase in sales
amount which resulted in a noticeable impact of the
economies of scale, while the improved EBIT margin from
approximately 5.5% in the corresponding period of the
previous year to approximately 7.2% this Year was due to
the Company'’s effective control over expenses.

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. MLahhBRMNDBERLD
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

For a business combination involving enterprises not under
common control, the cost of business combination should
be allocated between the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired on the date of acquisition, and assets and liabilities
should be accounted for at fair value and are subsequently
measured (“purchase price allocation”). The purchase price
allocation of the Group primarily arose from the acquisition
of KION and Dematic. In this year, the two purchase price
allocations stated above resulted in a decrease in profit
before tax of RMB2,306 million (2016: RMB608 million).
After adjustment for the purchase price allocation, total
profit amounted to approximately RMB12,838 million,
representing an increase of approximately 135.2% from
approximately RMB5,459 million in the corresponding
period of last year.

Finance Expenses

Finance expenses increased by approximately 197.1% to
approximately RMB591 million in the Year from
approximately RMB199 million in the corresponding period
of 2016. This was mainly attributable to the increase in
foreign exchange losses for the reporting period and KION
having completed its refinancing arrangement and repaid
the medium-term notes in the amount of EUR450 million in
advance last year, resulting in a recognition of a one-off
amortised income.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group's income tax expenses increased by
approximately 29.0% from approximately RMB1,041 million
in the corresponding period in 2016 to approximately
RMB1,344 million in the Year. The Group's average effective
tax rate was approximately 12.8% in the Year, compared to
approximately 22.5% in the corresponding period in 2016,
marking a decrease of 9.7 percentage points. The decrease
in effective tax rate was mainly due to the increase in the
proportion of profit from the Group’s business in China and
the lower average effective tax rate in China than overseas,
and the effect of the one-off deferred income tax income of
approximately EUR92.2 million arising from the adjustment
of the United States corporate income tax rate from 35% to
21%.

B2 B 51 cm 8 5y iifr (4&)

AEBIFER—FH TEES
e BEAFTEBLES
HRATEREHAHREE
MaEzsEEl FSEHEE
BEURAARBEARELET
wEFE(EHEEIE] -
AEBSEXREHEEE
TR 8 W 9 & Dematic
KFEELMMIBAHFEHED
BRELOPAEEHRAANBEAR
#2,3068 & L(20164F : A
RE#®eosa BT)  E5lkK &
HEE ERE MBHEBELY
A ANR#12838F & 7T L
EFRBAHARES4598 8
JC 3G I1#9135.2% ©

% EH
BHERBm T NFRH
M ARKI1986 &t £F
EAFEMNHARESE
Bt BMN1971% £ Z
= E AE BRI MARN A
FY XN BEmMELH 7
REEISERTHEHERE
HEHBERALZAMHEER
E—RMEFA -

izt B H

AEENFEHEREA-T
—NFRBAHHARE041
BETEMERAFENHA
R®13448 8w LY
290% - R AFEAEEH
FHEBEREL128% =
T —NFRHEML25%
TRROTEED T BB X
THREIEZHEANEKF BT
Blsgm MEARAFEHERR
K8 S i R A R A 2 B b
EMEB AW EBH3I%A
BE1% M EE — IR EEE
FIBHRWRALNR2EER T

s -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 £E#R 23




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Group's net profit increased by approximately 155.2%
from approximately RMB3,596 million in the corresponding
period of 2016 to approximately RMB9,178 million in the
Year. During the Year, the net profit margin was
approximately 6.1%, representing an increase of
approximately 2.2 percentage points from approximately
3.9% recorded in the corresponding period in 2016. This
was primarily attributable to the substantial increase in the
Group's revenue in general, the increase in the proportion
of profit derived from China under the continual growth of
the heavy-duty truck industry and the downward
adjustment of the United States corporate income tax.

Liquidity and Cash Flow

During the Year, the Group generated operating cash flows
of approximately RMB16,258 million. A portion of such
proceeds was applied to acquiring approximately 4,023,275
additional KION shares (at a total consideration of
approximately EUR260 million), acquiring shares of the U.S.—
based Power Solutions International, Inc. (at a total
consideration of approximately US$60 million), and the
increase in the Group’s equity interest in Shandong Heavy
Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. from 20% to 37.5% (at a
consideration of RMB648 million), repaying borrowings,
paying interest and acquiring property, plant and equipment
for the expansion of the Group’s business. As of 31
December 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio (Net interest-
bearing debts/(Shareholders’ equity + net interest-bearing
debts)) was 35.5% (31 December 2016: 47.0%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

2. Financial Position

a.

Assets and Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total assets of
approximately RMB189,638 million, of which approximately
RMB100,340 million were current assets. As at 31
December 2017, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB34,222 million (as at 31 December
2016: approximately RMB27,123 million). On the same
date, the Group’s total liabilities was approximately
RMB133,283 million, of which approximately RMB78,474
million were current liabilities. The current ratio was
approximately 1.28x (as at 31 December 2016:
approximately 1.30x).

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total equity of
approximately RMB56,355 million, of which approximately
RMB35,240 million was attributable to equity holders of the
Company and the balance was minority interests. Interest
attributable to minority interest holders includes the issue of
perpetual capital securities in the principal amount of
US$775 million in September 2017. The borrowings of the
Group as at 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately
RMB31,071 million, which included bonds of approximately
RMB10,460 million and bank borrowings of approximately
RMB20,611 million. Borrowings repayable on demand or
within a period not exceeding one year were approximately
RMB4,932 million, borrowings repayable within a period of
more than one year but not exceeding two years were
approximately RMB2,973 million; borrowings repayable
within a period of more than two years but not exceeding
five years were approximately RMB12,534 million; and
borrowings repayable within a period of more than 5 years
were approximately RMB171 million. The bank borrowings
included approximately RMB3,920 million of fixed interest
rate bank borrowings and approximately RMB16,691 million
of floating interest rate bank borrowings. Other than Euro-
denominated borrowings equivalent to approximately
RMB18,087 million and USD-denominated borrowings
equivalent to approximately RMB312 million, the borrowings
are primarily Renminbi-denominated borrowings. The
revenue of the Group is mainly in Renminbi and Euro.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Contracts have been entered into with financial institutions
to swap the USD400 million USD-denominated bonds issued
in September 2015 and the USD775 million USD-
denominated perpetual capital securities issued in
September 2017 to Euro, and thus the Group does not
consider the currency risk facing its future general cash
outflow significant. As a policy, the Group manages its
capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to
shareholders through the optimization of the debts and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior years.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, bank deposits and notes
receivable of approximately RMB16,830 million (as at 31
December 2016: approximately RMB10,788 million) were
pledged to banks to secure the Group’s notes payable, letter
of guarantee, letter of credit and etc. issued by banks. The
pledged bank deposits carry prevailing bank interest rates.
The pledge will be released upon the settlement of the
relevant bank borrowings. The fair value of the bank
deposits as at the balance sheet date was approximately the
same as the carrying amount. Certain other assets were also
pledged by the Group to secure the Group's borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Contingencies

On 31 December 2017, the Group provided certain
distributors and agents bank guarantee amounting to
approximately RMB3,522 million (as at 31 December 2016:
approximately RMB2,457 million) to secure their obtaining
and use of banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group provided guarantee for
joint liabilities in respect of failure of the leasee under
finance lease to settle instalment payments plus interest.
Risk exposure in respect of possible guarantee for joint
liabilities amounted to approximately RMB1,507 million (as
at 31 December 2016: approximately RMB923 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s guarantee for
borrowings and other guarantee amounted to
approximately RMB376 million (as at 31 December 2016:
approximately RMB662 million).

Commitments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had capital
commitments of approximately RMB1,803 million (as at 31
December 2016: approximately RMB1,892 million),
principally for the capital expenditure for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment. The capital expenditure will
be financed by internal resources.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had investment
commitments amounting to approximately RMB5 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) SIREmMmMNIT (&)

3. Other Financial Information 3. HtMKER

a. Employees a EEEHM
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately RZE—+F+_A=+—
74,500 employees (including approximately 31,600 H- &2 a k¥ A 474,500
employees of KION). During the Year, the Group paid % & 8 (B 15 4931,600 % 8l #
remuneration of approximately RMB21,890 million. The BE) - RAFE AEEA
emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up IRALHANRBE21,808 8
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their T A EE B M B BR
merits, qualifications and competence. HARAIFMEESRER
ENRE BERRKRIEREN

EE -

During the Year, skills enhancement trainings were arranged RAFE R EREMNE
for employees according to their job positions, based on the BB MM I SRS R
respective prerequisites, our corporate strategies and the BREk HXBEAEHEHE
needs of business development, covering more than 97% of LR ERAEI HEAE
the Group’s employees by means of online and offline HET  AABQZ2HEIEISE
platforms to cater to self-learning and classroom training EIRAE SRR 3
taught by internal lecturers or lecturers engaged externally, Sl K B2 25 ON BR H R B I
or taught by external agencies. The Group spent RN BEXRENITMA L
approximately RMB18 million in aggregate on providing 2K AEINEBERHOARK

such trainings during the year. 18H &L °

b. Major Investment b. BEARE
On 22 May 2017 (Central European Time), KION Group AG RZE—+tFRATZHK
("KION") issued in aggregate 9,300,000 new KION shares N FR SR B ) - KION Group AG
through the accelerated market bookbuilding offering (Te\ )35 3@ hn 3k ™ 35 8 &2
process. The Company has, through its indirect wholly- & 5 = B 17 A $£9,300,000
owned subsidiary Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Holding S.a A% # Sl Bk 19 - A2 AR B
r.l. (“Weichai Lux”), subscribed for 4,023,275 new KION EfEE2E T RARIMEES N
shares based on the subscription price of EUR64.83 per (EHRB)ERAER QA #
KION share at a total consideration of approximately L ERE] T R6483E
EUR260 million. The Group’s shareholding in KION remains T R B8 E 74,023,275 % #7 5l
at 43.26%. Bkt BRENR26{ERK

TL e A KB AT A S B
#E4543.26% ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

On 30 August 2017, the Group entered into an agreement
on capital increase in relation to Shandong Heavy Industry
Group Finance Co., Ltd., to the effect that the Group will
contribute RMB648 million to increase its equity interest in
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. from
20% t0 37.5%.

Major Acquisition and Disposal

During the period, the Company approved the acquisition
by Weichai America Corp., its wholly-owned subsidiary, of
2,728,752 ordinary shares and 2,385,624 preferred shares
of PSI Inc., at a total consideration of US$60 million. Upon
full conversion of the aforesaid preferred shares into
ordinary shares, the Company now holds shares
representing 40.7% of the equity of PSI Inc., and become its
single largest shareholder. Pursuant to the agreement, 18
months after the completion of the above transaction,
Weichai America Corp. may exercise a call option to
increase its holding in PSI Inc. to 51%.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other
major acquisition or disposal during the Year.

Subsequent Events

On 28 March 2018, the Company’s 2017 profit distribution
proposal was approved by the Company’s seventh meeting
of the fourth session of the Board. The Company proposed
a distribution to all shareholders of a cash dividend of
RMB2.50 (including tax) for every 10 shares held, based on
the total share capital of 7,997,238,556 shares as of 31
December 2017, without any capitalisation of reserve.
Completion of the proposal is subject to the consideration
and approval by the 2017 Annual General Meeting.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(1) DIRECTORS

30

Mr. Tan Xuguang, Chinese, aged 56, is the chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, chairman of Shandong Heavy Industry
Group Co., Ltd., chairman of Shandong Communications Industry Group
Holding Co., Ltd. and chairman of Weichai Group Holdings Limited
(which holds A Shares of the Company with details as set out below and
is thus interested in shares of the Company under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance). He is also the chairman of Shaanxi
Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited and Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.,
and the supervisor of KION Group AG. Mr. Tan joined Weifang Diesel
Engine Factory in 1977 and had held various positions including
chairman and general manager of Shandong Weichai Import and Export
Co., Ltd., general manager of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory, chairman
of Torch Automobile Group Co., Ltd., chairman of Weichai Heavy-duty
Machinery Co., Ltd. and director of Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd. Mr. Tan
is a senior economist and holds a doctor’s degree in engineering. Mr.
Tan was appointed as a Representative of the Tenth, Eleventh, Twelfth
and Thirteenth National People’s Congress of the PRC and was honored
“National Labor Model”, "ENEEEE ML EIE 44" (the Gold
Award of the 4th Yuan Baohua Enterprise Management).

Mr. Zhang Quan, Chinese, aged 54, is an Executive Director and
Executive President of the Company. Mr. Zhang joined Weifang Diesel
Engine Factory in 1986 and had held the positions of directors of the
quality control department and the marketing department, general
manager of marketing and general manager of the sales and marketing
company of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory. Mr. Zhang is currently a
director of Weichai Group Holdings Limited, Weichai Heavy-duty
Machinery Co., Ltd. and Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhang is a
senior economist and holds a bachelor’s degree in engineering and a
MBA degree.

Mr. Xu Xinyu, Chinese, aged 54, is an Executive Director and Executive
President of the Company. Mr. Xu joined Weifang Diesel Engine Factory
in 1986 and had held the positions of deputy general manager of
Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd., deputy general manager
and executive deputy general manager of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory,
director of Torch Automobile Group Co., Ltd., chairman of Weichai
Power (Weifang) Investment Co., Ltd., chairman of Weichai Power
(Shanghai) Technology Development Co., Ltd., chairman of Weichai
Power (Beijing) International Resource Investment Co., Ltd., chairman of
Société International des Moteurs Baudouin and chairman of Weichai
America Corp. Mr. Xu is currently a director of Weichai Group Holdings
Limited, director of Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International
Development Co., Ltd., chairman of Weichai Power (Luxembourg)
Holding S.a r.I. and director of Ferretti International Holdings S.p.A. Mr.
Xu is a senior economist and holds a bachelor’s degree in science and an
MBA degree.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Sun Shaojun, Chinese, aged 52, is an Executive Director and
Executive President of the Company. Mr. Sun joined Weifang Diesel
Engine Factory in 1988 and had held the positions of supervisor of the
engineering department, the chief engineer of Weifang Diesel Engine
Factory, and director of Torch Automobile Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Sun is
currently a director of Weichai Group Holdings Limited and Weichai
Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd., and chairman of the U.S.-based PSI Inc.
He is a researcher in applied engineering technology, and holds a doctor
degree in engineering. He is a candidate of "BIREBT& AL LiE2"
(National Hundred and Ten Million Talents Project), receives special
subsidy from the State Council and is appointed as “ L& A RBTE
I EERFIEHEK" (Taishan Mountain scholar specialist appointed by
Shandong People’s Government).

Mr. Yuan Hongming, Chinese, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 8 June 2017 and as an Executive President
of the Company on 5 September 2017. He had been the deputy general
manager and chief engineer of Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd. (B
TR EEEBREEAR]), deputy general manager of Shaanxi Heavy-
duty Motor Company Limited (RPEEHLSEHFRR A R]) and general
manager and chief accountant of Shaanxi Automotive Holdings Group
Co., Ltd. (BRPEAEEAREE AR A ). He is currently the chairman of
the board of directors of Shaanxi Automotive Holdings Group Co., Ltd.
(BRPE SR EE BB AR, the chairman of the board of directors
and director of Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd. (BRFE/REEE AR
EH{EA7A)), and the general manager and director of Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Company Limited (PP &AL B AR /A R]). Mr. Yuan is a senior
engineer and a holder of a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Mr. Yuan
also obtained the qualification of a machinery senior professional
manager (i T3 (3R RBELIEAN).

Mr. Yan lJianbo, Chinese, aged 55, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 8 June 2017 and as an Executive President
of the Company on 5 September 2017. He had been the deputy general
manager of Shaanxi Auto Gear General Works (P70 ;55 &85 42,
deputy general manager and director of Shaanxi Fast Gear Co. Ltd. (B&
TE+EEmBRE(EAR]), and deputy general manager, general
manager and director of Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission
Co., ltd. BREELRABEEHEEBREMAR]). He is currently the
chairman of the board of directors and the secretary of the party
committee of Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd. (B&7g
FEHEAEESHEEARSE(EAT) and the general manager and
director of Shaanxi Fast Gear Co. Ltd. Bt EmERETEAR).
Mr. Yan is a senior engineer and a holder of an executive master of
business administration degree.
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Mr. Wang Yuepu, Chinese, aged 55, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 30 June 2014. Mr. Wang was a division
head of the investment division of Weifang City Planning Commission
(#trmst2l£ 8 ), a deputy director of the Weifang City Electric
Power Construction Office (#¥mE NERIAZE), a deputy general
manager of Weifang Investment Company and the party committee
secretary, chairman and general manager of Weifang Investment
Company. Mr. Wang is presently the party committee secretary,
chairman and general manager of Weifang Investment Group Company
Limited, a director of Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd. and a
supervisor of Shandong International Trust Co., Ltd.. He is a senior
economist and holds a Master of Business Administration degree.

Mr. Jiang Kui, Chinese, aged 53, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 29 June 2012. He had held various
positions including engineer and deputy general manager of Assembly
Department of Shandong Bulldozer General Factory (1B HE+ 48 R),
deputy general manager of Shantui Import and Export Company (LLIH#E#
H A7), deputy director, director of manufacturing department,
deputy general manager and director of Shantui Engineering Machinery
Co., Ltd. (L TEHEMARHBRAR]), deputy general manager of
Shandong Engineering Machinery Group Co., Ltd. (IE TI2#mEEA
fR/x7]), executive deputy general manager and vice chairman of
Weichai Group Holdings Limited, chairman of Shanzhong Jianji Co., Ltd.
and director of Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. He is currently
the general manager of Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd., a
director of Shantui Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd., a supervisor of
KION Group AG, a director of the U.S.-based PSI Inc., and a director of
Ferretti International Holdings S.p.A.. He is a senor engineer and holds
an MBA degree.

Mr. Gordon Riske, American/German, aged 60, was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company on 24 June 2013. He had been
chief executive officer of KUKA Roboter GmbH, chairman of the
executive board of directors of Deutz AG in Cologne, Germany, chief
executive officer of KION Material Handling GmbH and a member of the
board of directors of KION Holding 2 GmbH. He is currently the chief
executive officer of KION Group AG. He holds a degree in electronic
engineering and a bachelor degree in business administration.

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. MLahhBRMNDBERLD

EF ESENRSRERAS(E)

FTREEE PEE S5 RZ
—NFEXNA=ZFTHZEABERRARIFEH
NTEE FEIEBITAEZESRER
BE #UTMENEISHAZTI M4
MO TMRERRIBBKEE #HMEE
PREIEZELY EETRRAERKHES R
THITTRESEBERAREZER
EERFOKE HEEEBOERD
AEE ILREBBEERDBRAA
EEIEmEEELT S REEM-

TIEXRE FEHE B3 KT — =
FRNAZ+TNBEBEZTAEARARIER
TEH FMTLEHETHAER T2
MESHIABE  LEEHORAR &
EIE N IREMBROBRAARE
HEIAPR APR - BBLE -EF-
IR TREMEEBR AR BLE -
HEEREBMARAREH AL -
BEER LEBKBERAAESER
LWRETEEERARNESTSEHRME
LRETEEERARALE  UET
BEBBOERARTNES IHARE
HEFEAPSIAAIES AN EEER
ERARES: QIR MBAE I

B o

Gordon Riske£ &£ ' & 1= EH £ © 60
R ZE—ZFANAZ+THEEZRT
REAATIFNITEST FEEEEE K
BAERRAERATE  BENES
KEABDERAARTESS EF
KION Material Handling GmbH (&)l 5 #7
WREBAERAA)EFNITE RELEEZERI
ERAFIZEEEXRE  RAENBAAE
FATE BHRIBBLMNIHERSE
B4+ 8-



DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Loh Yih, Singaporean, aged 53, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 29 June 2012. He worked in
Ernst & Young and West Merchant Bank and had held various positions
including senior manager of capital market investment department of
the Standard Chartered Merchant Bank, president of Netplus
Communications Pte Ltd and a partner of MGF Capital Group. He is
currently executive chairman of Acesian Partners Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Singapore Exchange, an independent
director and chairman of audit committee of Ban Leong Technologies
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Singapore Exchange,
an independent director and member of audit committee of
International Press Softcom Limited, a company whose shares are listed
on the Singapore Exchange, and an independent director and member
of audit committee of Trek 2000 International Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Singapore Exchange. He is a Chartered
Financial Analyst and holds an accounting degree from the National
University of Singapore.

Mr. Zhang Zhong, Chinese, aged 49, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 30 June 2014. Mr. Zhang
held independent directorships in Huolinhe Opencut Coal Industry
Corporation Limited of Inner Mongolia (A% & E#RT BRI 2% D AR
AT]), Zhengzhou Sino-Crystal Diamond Co., Ltd. (EF/H%E & £ MlA R (D
BRAT), Konka Group Co., Ltd. (BEEERMHAR LT and Jilin
Gpro Titanium Industry Co., Ltd. (HFMEEKERMNERAF). At
present, Mr. Zhang is a lawyer and partner of Beijing Zhonglun Law Firm
bR EMEEHT and an independent director of Beijing Dalong
Weiye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. At U KFE(E = E F A D
B2 7)) and Keda Group Co., Ltd. (REZEER AR A R]). He holds
a Master of Laws from the Renmin University of China (fF B AR KE2).
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Mr. Wang Gongyong, Chinese, aged 45, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 30 June 2014.
Mr. Wang is currently a partner of ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants. He is also an independent director of Sunvim Group Co.,
Ltd. (Z B &= E & B R 2 7). He is a certified public accountant of
the PRC, a certified asset valuer, a senior auditor, a senior accountant, a
member of the Certified Public Accountant Industry Leader (Reserve)
Scheme. Mr. Wang holds a Master of Business Administration from the
Shandong University (1L 3 X £). He is a collaborative tutor for
graduate courses leading to professional degrees at Shandong University
and a fellow member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Ning Xiangdong, Chinese, aged 52, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 30 June 2014.
Mr. Ning held independent directorships in listed companies, such as
Datang Telecom Technology Co., Ltd. (KEBERERMHERAR),
Shantui Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd. (LL# TR2# %D AR A 7)),
GoerTek Inc. (FEEERR{(HAPR/AR]), Hong Yuan Securities Co., Ltd.
(RRFEERMHDABR AR, Aerospace Hi-Tech Holding Group Co., Ltd. (fit
REIIEREERRD AR AF]), China Southern Airlines Company
Limited (FFEfHHZ=ADBR A F), Sichuan Changhong Electric Co.,
Ltd. (P9)I| =T B =AM B PR A F]) and Yango Group Co., Ltd. (B8t
BN ABBRAR]) . Mr. Ning is currently a professor and doctoral tutor of
the Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management (&2 K
B EIRERT). He holds a Doctor of Philosophy in Economics from
Tsinghua University.

Mr. Li Hongwu, Chinese, aged 55, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 8 June 2017. He is currently
an associate professor at the Law School of Shandong University, a
solicitor at Shandong Wenhan Law Firm (LI5S /2EMEFT), and an
independent director of Shandong Jinling Mining Co., Ltd. and
Shandong Head Co., Ltd. Mr. Li holds a master of laws degree from
Shandong University.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(2) SUPERVISORS

Mr. Lu Wenwu, Chinese, aged 53, is the chairman of the supervisory
committee of the Company. Mr. Lu joined Weichai Diesel Engine Factory
in 1982 and had held various positions at Weichai Diesel Engine Factory
as deputy general manager of the 615 Factory and deputy general
manager of the mid-speed engine factory, deputy director of the human
resources department, and at Weichai Power Co., Ltd. as general
manager of the 615 Factory, general manager of No. 1 Factory and
director of the production department. He is now chairman of the Labor
Union and director of the party committee working department of the
Company, and director of staff career development centre of the
Company. He is also a supervisor of Weichai Group Holdings Limited.
Mr. Lu is a senior political engineer and holds a bachelor’s degree.

Mr. Wu Hongwei, Chinese, aged 51, was appointed as a Supervisor of
the Company on 30 August 2017. He joined Weifang Diesel Engine
Factory in 1991 and had held the positions of deputy manager of the
finance department of Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd,
assistant to director, deputy director and executive deputy director of the
finance department of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory, chief accountant
of Chongging Weichai Diesel Engine Factory, director of the finance
department of Weichai Power Co., Ltd., and director of the finance
department of Weichai Group Holdings Limited. He is currently a director
and chief financial officer of Weichai Group Holdings Limited, a director
of Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd., and a director of Kama Co.,
Ltd. He is an accountant and holds a Master of Business Administration
degree.

Mr. Ma Changhai, Chinese, aged 43, is a Supervisor of the Company.
Mr. Ma joined Weifang Diesel Engine Factory in 1997. He had been the
deputy manager at administration department and head of brand
management department of Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co.,
Ltd.. He is currently the administrative officer of the Company, the
deputy administrative officer at its Hong Kong office and an officer at
the administrative office of external affairs, a director of Weichai Power
(Hong Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a director of Weichai
International (Hong Kong) Energy Group Co., Ltd., and a director of
Weichai Power (Beijing) International Resource Investment Co., Ltd.. He
is a senior political engineer and holds a bachelor’s degree.
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(3) SENIOR MANAGEMENT

36

Mr. Dai Lixin, Chinese, aged 50, is a Vice President of the Company,
the Secretary to the Board and Director of Capital Operation Department
of the Company. He joined Weifang Diesel Engine Factory in 1987 and
was the deputy director of the treasury department of Weifang Diesel
Engine Factory and director of the securities department. Mr. Dai is a
senior economist and holds a bachelor’s degree.

Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong, Chinese, aged 51, is the Chief Financial
Officer, Company Secretary and Authorised Representative of the
Company. He is currently a director of Weichai International (Hong
Kong) Energy Group Co., Ltd.. Mr. Kwong joined the Company in 2013.
Mr. Kwong obtained a diploma in accountancy from the Morrison Hill
Technical Institute in Hong Kong in 1987. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants. He has worked for companies
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and has over 25
years’ experience in the accounting and financial management fields.

Mr. Feng Gang, Chinese, aged 53, is a Vice President of the Company.
He joined Weichai Diesel Engine Factory in 1986 and was manager of
technology service department, assistant to general manager and
executive deputy general manager of sales department of the head
office and executive deputy director of marketing management
department of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory and assistant to the
general manager, and deputy manager of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.. He is
an engineer and holds a bachelor’'s degree in engineering. He holds a
National May 1st Labor Medal of China.

Mr. Tong Dehui, Chinese, aged 53, is a Vice President of the Company.
He joined Weichai Diesel Engine Factory in 1985 and was the assistant
supervisor and supervisor of the technology centre of Weichai Power
and deputy chief engineer and deputy general manger of Weichai
Power. Mr. Tong is a researcher in applied engineering technology and
holds a doctor’s degree in engineering. Mr. Tong receives special subsidy
from the State Council. He was appointed as “|L 4 A RBARILEE
FEEE " (Taishan Mountain scholar specialist appointed by Shandong
People’s Government). He is a Young and Middle-aged Expert with
Outstanding Contribution awarded by Shandong Province.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Li Shaohua, Chinese, aged 52, is a Vice President of the Company.
Mr. Li joined the Company in 1987 and had held various positions
including the deputy director of the marketing department of Weichai
Power, deputy general manager of the sales and marketing company,
director of application engineering department and assistant to the
general manager and assistant to the president of Weichai Power. He is
a senior engineer and holds a bachelor’s degree in engineering.

Ms. Ren Bingbing, Chinese, aged 52, is a Vice President of the
Company. Ms. Ren joined the Company in 1987 and had held various
positions including the deputy general manager of procurement
management department and assistant to president of the Company.
She is a senior economist and a graduate student in economics.

Mr. Ding Yingdong, Chinese, aged 49, is a Vice President of the
Company. Mr. Ding joined Weifang Diesel Engine Factory in 1990 and
had held various positions including deputy director of corporate
planning department and director of human resources department of
Weifang Diesel Engine Factory, director of human resources and
corporate management department, assistant to president, director of
the operational management department and a supervisor of the
Company. Mr. Ding is a senior economist and holds the qualification of
senior manager of corporate human resources, a bachelor’'s degree in
engineering and an MBA degree.

Mr. Hu Haoyan, American, aged 62, is a Vice President of the
Company. Mr. Hu joined the Company in 2014. He has been an adjunct
assistant professor at Ohio State University, a senior engineer,
engineering manager, senior engineering manager at Jacobs Vehicle
Systems, Inc., senior engineering manager at Detroit Diesel Corporation,
an engineering manager at Caterpillar, chief scientist at Eaton
Corporation plc. He holds a doctoral degree granted by the Department
of Mechanical Engineering at Massachusetts Institute of Technology
(MIT) and is a post-doctoral researcher at the same department. Mr. Hu
is an expert under the National Thousand Talents Program of China and
he is also a Taishan Scholars Blue Industry Scheme Expect.

Mr. Zhang Jiyuan, Chinese, aged 53, is a Vice President and chief
designer of the Company. He joined Weichai Diesel Engine Factory in
1990 and had held various positions including the deputy director and
chief designer of the technology centre and assistant to president of the
Company. He is a researcher in applied engineering technology and
holds a master’s degree in engineering. He receives special subsidy from
the State Council. Mr. Zhang is a Taishan Industry Leader Talent and a
Young and Middle-aged Expert with Outstanding Contribution awarded
by Shandong Province.
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DIRECTORS” REPORT

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group is the manufacture and sale of diesel
engines, automobiles and other major automobile components, other
components, import and export services, and forklift trucks and supply chain
solution services. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries and associates are set out in Note VIl to the financial statement.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review, major risks, financial analysis and future prospects of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Chairman’s
Statement on pages 7 to 15 and Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 16 to 29.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 108 to 375. The Board recommended the
distribution to all shareholders of a cash dividend of RMB2.50 (including tax)
for every 10 shares held for the year ended 31 December 2017. No
capitalisation of reserve will be implemented. This recommendation has been
disclosed as a subsequent event after the reporting period on page 342 in the
financial statements.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and minority interests
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on
page 376. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in Note V.16 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during the
year are set out in Note V.15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in Note V.43 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in Notes V.44 to 48 to the financial statements and in the
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserve available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the relevant regulations, amounted to
RMB25,266,100,907.25. As approved by the Board on 28 March 2018, the
Company proposed to distribute to all shareholders of a cash dividend of
RMB2.50 (including tax) for every 10 shares held. No capitalisation of reserve
will be implemented..

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totaling
approximately RMB6,048,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Tan Xuguang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Zhang Quan (Executive President)

Xu Xinyu (Executive President)

Sun Shaojun (Executive President)

Yuan Hongming (Executive President)
(appointed on 8 June 2017)

Yan Jianbo (Executive President)
(appointed on 8 June 2017)

Li Dakai (Executive President)
(resigned on 29 March 2017)

Non-executive Directors
Wang Yuepu

Jiang Kui

Gordon Riske

Independent Non-executive Directors
Loh Yih

Zhang Zhong

Wang Gongyong

Ning Xiangdong

Li Hongwu (appointed on 8 June 2017)

Zhang Zhenhua (resigned on 29 March 2017)

SUPERVISORS

Lu Wenwu

Ma Changhai

Wu Hongwei (appointed on 30 August 2017)
Jiang Jianfang (resigned on 30 August 2017)

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), and as at the date of this report, the
Company still considers that all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

40 WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. MLahhBRMNDBERLD

ESEHRS (88

EBENES

RAFRRBEAREBH AAREFR

EEMT:

HITES
BERX(EERREEHNTE)
R OR(HTTARE)

R EHITHEE)

BROBE#ITHEE)

RER#ITHEE)
R=ZZE—tFXXANB LM

B EN(HTHEH)
R=ZF—tFXANB LMD
TRABTHEEH)
(RZE—tEF=ZA=F+NAED
FHITES

FHE

T =

Gordon Riske

BIUFHITES

E R

kB

TEE

HERR
FHRRZZE—FANR LD
RIRER_ZE—-—+tF=ZHA =+ NLBEE
B3

B R

BEE
REBERZZE—LFNA=F+B LA
BErFRZE—tFNA=THE®

ARRIEERESBLFRTESRERT AR
ERGABERABESZ EMAAT ETRRD

FIVBHEAEBLSNELOFERER

AREBH ARABRMNMAASZTBILIFNTE

EHBBIAL-



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 30 to 37 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company and their relevant terms of office shall be from 30 June 2015 to the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company for the year ending
31 December 2017, except for Mr. Yuan Hongming and Mr. Yan Jianbo whose
terms of office commenced on 8 June 2017 and shall end at the conclusion of
the annual general meeting of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2017. Each of the non-executive directors, independent non-executive directors
and supervisors was appointed for a term from 30 June 2015 to the conclusion
of the annual general meeting of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017, except for Mr. Li Hongwu whose terms of office commenced
on 8 June 2017 and shall end at the conclusion of the annual general meeting
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 and Mr. Wu Hongwei
whose terms of office commenced on 30 August 2017 and shall end at the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017.

None of the above directors and supervisors has entered into a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without the payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Mr. Gordon Riske holds interest in KION and was interested in contracts for
the sale of commodities, provision of product testing, casting, catering and
leasing services by Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG, a subsidiary of the
Group, to KION and its subsidiaries, and in contracts for the provision of
information technology services, accounting, human resources, logistics
services etc. by KION and its subsidiaries to Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG.
Save as disclosed above, no director or supervisor had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance which
provides appropriate cover for the directors of the Group. At no time during
the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report, was or is
there any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any
of the directors of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short position (if any) of the
directors, the chief executives and the supervisors in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

ESEHRS (88

B3 NESBNKMKIEEEKMN

& =
RZE—+tF+_RA=+—H EZ -5k
EEABRNEEAARAARLEMABEZBE(TE

ERBFMPERII(ESZ RBEKRDDSE
XVER BBy - BB RES+  HERE
BHELRBMERIEI2GBEARAARFE
WERMALE IRBELT AR ESTET
EEXFNBRETUA(RETRDRES A
EARALREBEERXANEERERENA)

ms
Percentage of
the issued
Number of Number of share capital
Name of director Capacity “A" shares held “H" shares held of the Company
Lo N
EEpe g% FiEAREE FEHREAE ERTREAESHL
Tan Xuguang Beneficial owner 58,842,596 (Note 1) - 0.74%
8 8 X ExnEAA (Bffat1)
Zhang Quan Beneficial owner 13,684,324 (Note 1) - 0.17%
3R EnEAA (Krat1)
Xu Xinyu Beneficial owner 13,684,324 (Note 1) - 0.17%
R E ERERA (KtzE1)
Sun Shaojun Beneficial owner 13,684,324 (Note 1) - 0.17%
HLE ExnEAA (Ffat1)
Yuan Hongming Beneficial owner 440 - 0.000006%
S EnEAA
Interest held by spouse 444 - 0.000006%
RS A AEw
Yan Jianbo Beneficial owner 22,404 - 0.0003%
B % 4 EmEBEA
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) EEERE(HE)
Percentage of
the issued
Number of Number of share capital of
Name of supervisor Capacity “A" shares held  “H" shares held the Company
(RN
EEpR 5% FEHEARBE FHEHRHEE EBRRTREBEIL
Lu Wenwu Beneficial owner 600,000 - 0.008%
BXR ERERA
Wu Hongwei Beneficial owner 4,789,516 - 0.06%
RAtE ExnEAA
Notes: B -

1.

These shares were derived from the previous domestic shares of the Company. The
domestic shares were ordinary shares issued by the Company, with a Renminbi
denominated par value of RMB1.00 each, which were subscribed for and paid up in
Renminbi or credited as fully paid up. These shares became A Shares of the Company
upon the A Share listing of the Company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

All the shareholding interests listed in the above tables are “long” position.

Interests in the shares of associated corporations of the
Company

Name of associated

1. ZERBZHARELTAAER - WERBAR
AEITHEER UARKIE GREBAR
#1.007C " UARBBERMEXARRI BEE -
EZERDRAREAREFRYNESZXZ P L
BHERBERAZAR -

2. LRI ERE I BIFE -

RAXTHEEEE RS OES

Approximate

Class and percentage
number of interest in the
securities entire issued

interested or
deemed to be

share capital
of associated

Note:

Name of director corporation Nature of interest interested corporations

BHERAER HAEEE

BEREHR 2BERT

EZNES IR A B R &

EEHE RS EHEMEE HrHRHA AR

Gordon Riske (Note) KION Group AG (“KION") Beneficial owner 114,060 0.10%
Gordon Riske (41 i) EmEA A ordinary shares
114,060 A% & 38 A

Interest held by spouse 93,940 0.08%

HECB A RES

Gordon Riske, a non-executive Director, was the beneficial owner of 114,060 shares in

KION and he was also deemed to be interested in 93,940 shares in KION which were
beneficially held by his wife, Ms. Benita Riske.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors, the
chief executives nor the supervisors had an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was recorded in the register required to be kept
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company

pursuant to the Model Code.

ordinary shares
93,940 f% & i fx

Bt 5 FE#1 77 2 3 Gordon Riske 7 KION £ 114,060 A% % 17
HEZHEAA IR BRAEZ FBenita Riske X
B 25 15 5 7793,940 IR KION % 17 70 #5 5 18 25 °

X FEEEN R-F—tF+ = A
+—B BEEF BETRABRES
A E S EE LR R B IR HE R
19 35 1 % o 9 5 1R 1 B % 1% 40 % 14 ) 352
166 40 7 780 2 R0 % (6% 1 P A 7 ¢ B 2R B A
TS KA B EEET B ANE AL
AR TAR -

B
7
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) EEERE(B)

DETAILS OF CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND RSN EZRBISR BN
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

() Changes in share capital ) BREAZEBER

1. Changes in share capital (as at 31 December 2017) 1. BAEZEEFELX(BAE-F
—+FF+=-—A=+—H)

Before the movement Increase/decrease in the movement (+,-) After the movement

AREBH KpgBEd (+-) LYY S

Transfer
No. of New shares Bonus of surplus No. of
shares Percentage issued Issue to capital Others Sub-total shares Percentage
48 tH - BfHR R DEGER it it L] ]
(%) (%)
. Restricted circulating shares 867,643,515 21.70% - 8TE83515 - 3579269 871222784 1,738,866,299 21.74%
BRERNR
1. State-owned shares - - - - - - - - -
BFHR
2. State-owned legal person shares 821,265,504 2054% - 81,265,504 - - 81265504 1,642,531,008 2054%
HEEARR
3. Shares held by other domestic entities 46,378,011 1.16% - 318 - 3579269 49,957,280 96,335,291 1.20%
EfhERR
including: Shares held by domestic - - - - - - - - -
non-state-owned legal persons
B BhERE AR
Shares held by domestic natural 46,378,011 1.16% - 3180 - 3,579,269 49,957,280 96,335,291 1.20%
persons
BRERARR
4. Shares held by foreign entities - - - - - - - - -
ERR
including: Shares held by overseas - - - - - - - - -
legal persons
B AR
Shares held by overseas natural - - - - - - - - _
persons

ENARARR

Il Non-restricted circulating shares 3,130975,763 7830% - 3130975763 - (3579269 312739494 6258372257 7826%

ERERERD

1. RMB ordinary shares 2,159455,763 54.00% - 1,159,455,763 - (3579269) 2155876494 4315332257 53.96%
AREEER

2. Domestic fsted foreign shares - - - - - - - - _
B LEmNER

3. Overseas fisted foreign shares 971,520,000 2430% - 971,520,000 - - 971520000 1,943,040,000 230%
EEmEAER

4. Others - - - - - - - - -
it

Il Total number of shares 3998,619.278 100% - 3998619278 - - 3998619.278  7,997,238,556 100%
Rires
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) EEERE(HB)

() Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as at 31 (I FERRERBER(R=_Z—LtF

December 2017) +=A=+—8H)
Total number of Shareholders  The number of shareholders is BERAE £201,007F 0 H FARR KK E
201,097 among which 200,825 are 200,825  HIR AR 2725

shareholders of “A" shares and
272 are shareholders of “H”

shares.
Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders Fi 105 R 5 #F IR 18 0
Number of
Approximate Total Number of shares
percentage of number of restricted pledged or
Name of shareholder Type of Shareholder shares held shares held shares held frozen
FRES BEREGS ERARE
BRRER BREME Bl FREY RHHE HRoOHE
(%)
HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign shareholder 24.23%  1,937,587,216 - N/A
ERRREARBABRA SMEBRE RA
Weichai Group Holdings lelted State-owned legal person 16.83%  1,345,905,600  1,345,905,600 -
HEEREEBERAR BBZEA
Weifang Investment Group Company Limited  State-owned legal person 371% 296,625,408 296,625,408 -
RGTREESEERAR BBZEA
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited ~ Domestic non-state-owned 2.83% 226,648,845 - -
PEESERBRHAERAA legal person
BNEEEEA
[VM Technical Consultants Wien Overseas legal person 1.80% 143,810,000 - -
Gesellschaft m.b.H. BONEA
B FIVME M ZHECHNERAF
Central Huijin Assets Management State-owned legal person 1.36% 108,492,800 - -
Company Limited BEA
FRESEEEREREMAER
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Overseas legal person 0.94% 75,024,649 - -
Limited (Note) BINEA
EROREEBRRAGE)
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Domestic non-state-owned 0.79% 63,434,960 - -
Company Limited legal person
LWRECERELERHERDA BNEEEZEA
Tan Xuguang Domestic natural person 0.74% 58,842,596 44,131,946 -
EBWK BERNBEAA
ICBCCS Fund - ICBC — Asset Funds and wealth 0.43% 34,770,730 - -
Management for Designated Customers management products etc.
IfmEES-IART HeBUERS
-REEFPEAEER
Note: Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited holds 75,024,649 A Shares on it BERREEEFIRLAFAET75024,6498%
behalf of shareholders under the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect ARBFREBRRIFAH -
mechanism.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) EEERE(B)

Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted shareholders FI105 R E IR R FF KX

46

Number of the
non-restricted

Name of shareholder shares held Type of shares
BREEREKRY
KRR & B IR 45 &2 IR 4 & 8
HKSCC Nominees Limited 1,937,587,216 Overseas listed foreign shares
EERREERBEABRLDA FoN T INE R
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 226,648,845 RMB ordinary shares
PEESSERDBRLQT AR L ER
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H. 143,810,000 RMB ordinary shares
B3 F VM Bl 54 S 4t B IR A F) AR EBE R
Central Huijin Assets Management Company Limited 108,492,800 RMB ordinary shares
PRECEEEEERAEMERAF NI il
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited 75,024,649 RMB ordinary shares
ERPREEBERAT AR L E R
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Company Limited 63,434,960 RMB ordinary shares
WRECERELERMDAERRD A AR EBE R
ICBCCS Fund — ICBC — Asset Management for 34,770,730 RMB ordinary shares
Designated Customers NI ill e
IRmEES-TIHRIT-BEEPEEER
ICBCCS Fund — Agricultural Bank of China — ICBCCS 33,316,400 RMB ordinary shares
Zhongzheng Financial Assets Management Scheme INIESE:
IRWEES-BRERT-LRKEHRZ
TREEEBERE
Nanfang Fund — Agricultural Bank of China — Nanfang 33,316,400 RMB ordinary shares
Zhongzheng Financial Assets Management Scheme =T =il e
BMAES-REBRT-BHIPECREEEBTE
Zhong'ou Fund — Agricultural Bank of China — Zhong'ou 33,316,400 RMB ordinary shares

Zhongzheng Financial Assets Management Scheme

FRES-RERT-FRTESRAET R

WEICHAI PowER Co., LTD.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

EEEHS (88

Number of the
non-restricted

Name of shareholder shares held Type of shares
BEERERN

KRR E B IR 5 &2 IR 4 &8

Boshi Fund — Agricultural Bank of China 33,316,400 RMB ordinary shares
— Boshi Zhongzheng Financial Assets Management Scheme AR T E I

BRES - BEERT-BETEEREETETE

Dacheng Fund — Agricultural Bank of China — Dacheng 33,316,400 RMB ordinary shares
Zhongzheng Financial Assets Management Scheme AR L @R

AKREE-RERIT-AKFIZCREEEIEE

Jiashi Fund — Agricultural Bank of China - Jiashi Zhongzheng 33,316,400 RMB ordinary shares
Financial Assets Management Scheme AR L BR

REES REBRT-FETICRNEEETETE

GF Fund — Agricultural Bank of China — GF Zhongzheng 33,316,400 RMB ordinary shares
Financial Assets Management Scheme AR L @R

BEES-RERT-EEFICREEETEE

Huaxia Fund — Agricultural Bank of China 33,316,400 RMB ordinary shares
— Huaxia Zhongzheng Financial Assets Management Scheme AR I E K

EEHS - RERT-EEFIFNEEETETE

Yinhua Fund — Agricultural Bank of China 33,316,400 RMB ordinary shares
- Yinhua Zhongzheng Financial Assets Management Scheme AR L @R

REAS-RERT-REFTIMEEETETE

E Fund — Agricultural Bank of China 33,316,400 RMB ordinary shares
— E Fund Zhongzheng Financial Assets Management Scheme AR I E

SHEES-REBT-FHETBeREETETE

National Social Security Fund — 412 Portfolio 24,129,212 RMB ordinary shares

EMERESN——HEE AR L E R

National Social Security Fund — 102 Portfolio 23,999,918 RMB ordinary shares

2EMRES T @G AR L BR

Note: B &t -

1. Among the aforesaid shareholders, Mr. Tan Xuguang is the chairman of Weichai 1. K EREAF  BIEKEERBUMERFIFIREE
Group Holding Limited. It is not certain whether there is any connected BERARIEFER - ARAIRMEMA + 5
relationship among other top ten shareholders and the other top ten non- WRERAMA +EEREIKHERREZFE
restricted shareholders, or whether there is any acting in concert relationship CEGFHEBHEGFE ttAMACETER —
among them. HITBA T o

2. Among the shareholders, Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Company Limited 2. NEREF  INRELXREELERGDE

held 60,434,960 shares through general account and 3,000,000 shares through
account of collateral securities for margin trading, totaling 63,434,960 shares.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F#R

R 2+ 7] 3# 8 & # Bk P #5 5 60,434,960 i -
i i 15 F X 5 & (R 78 5 Bk /P % H 3,000,000
K B E GF 5 5 63,434,960 K °
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO (including interests filed with the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange) shows that as at 31 December 2017, the following persons (other
than directors, chief executives and supervisors) had the following interests and
short positions (if any) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:

ESEHRS (88

FT2RER

RARARIBBEEHFRBAEKRAIENBBKRFTEN
FEBRRECLMEEAETSEH XA RN
MEZ)BErn R-ZE—tF+=-A=+—8"
TIHAT(EE SRABTEAERESKRIN
EARRABIRMDEBEKRGOPHES T #ER R

me(nEA) :

Percentage Percentage
of share of share
capital capital  Percentage
Long/ comprising comprising of total
Short  Number of only  Number of only issued share
Name Capacity position A shares A shares H shares H shares capital
AR ftHE  HERS
#e/ g &S K2y
i L RE ol HR & B Bk Bk
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Long 22.23% - - 16.83%
REAREEERAA EREEA #e
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. Held by controlled corporation Long 22.23% - - 16.83%
(Note 1) mXBEERA e
WRETEBERARAMZT)
Brandes Investment Partners, LP (Note 3) Investment manager Long - - 78,578,612 16.18% 3.93%
(Wi#3) RELE fe
Lazard Asset Management LLC (Note 2) Investment manager Long - - 245891812 2531% 6.15%
(Hit2) RERRE e
Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Portfolio Investment manager Long - - 23,707,500 5.86% 1.42%
(Note 4)(#1£4) REEE e
Barclays PLC (Note 3)(##3) Person having a security interest Long - - 525,552 0.11% 0.03%
in shares 59
HENHBERBEZHA
Interest of corporation controlled Long - - 25,453,050 5.24% 1.27%
by the substantial shareholder ie
RIRE TR 6l 02 B
25,978,602 5.35% 1.30%
Interest of corporation controlled Short - - 24,102,475 4.96% 1.21%
by the substantial shareholder *E
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take into consideration the Company’s bonus share issuance on 17 August 2012, 20
August 2015 and 21 July 2017 as there is no disclosure of interest obligation under the
SFO where there is no change in percentage of shareholdings for a substantial
shareholder.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2017.

B b X B8R #E S

DIRECTORS  REPORT (CONTINUED) ESSRE(E)
Percentage Percentage
of share of share
capital capital  Percentage
Long/ comprising comprising of total
Short  Number of only  Number of only issued share
Name Capacity position A shares A shares H shares H shares capital
EAR EHR HERT
#e/ g B& REAY
28 & %A ARE R Al HE & B Al Al
Morgan Stanley (Note 2) (ff i#2) Interest of corporation controlled Long - - 49335508 5.08% 1.23%
by the substantial shareholder e
ARRFAEH G EEER
Interest of corporation controlled Short - - 42,078545 4.33% 1.05%
by the substantial shareholder KE
AREFAEHNGEEES
BlackRock, Inc. Interest of corporation controlled Long - - 191,375,703 9.85% 2.39%
by the substantial shareholder e
ARRFEHGEERS

Notes: B &t

1. Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of State-owned Assets WREEEEEEEEREZE SN B LR AL
Supervision and Administration Commission of Shandong Province, held the entire share RETEEBRAAFAHEERERFR L
capital of Weichai Group Holding Limited (formerly known as Weifang Diesel Engine a] (B 18 73 7 27 5 0 #E ) B 2 BB AR 2K o
Works).

2. The number of H shares reported above by the relevant substantial shareholder does not 2. FHZ2HZHEHEFERRIFRZHRKE R I &
take into consideration the Company’s bonus share issuance on 21 July 2017 as there is FRARNAR-ZZF—FELAZ A+ —HAAR
no disclosure of interest obligation under the SFO where there is no change in EEITE WA RREESRRBEEL  f5E
percentage of shareholdings for a substantial shareholder. BERRREB DI EEE) - RIGEEE#E 7

3 The number of H shares reported above by the relevant substantial shareholder does not 3 FHZHZHEBEFERRFE ZHKE B I E
take into consideration the Company’s bonus share issuance on 20 August 2015 and 21 FARARAR-ZF—RAFNAZFTAHAHEZ=F
July 2017 as there is no disclosure of interest obligation under the SFO where there is —t+tEFELAZF —HWARKRZETE WA
no change in percentage of shareholdings for a substantial shareholder. RRIEFFRBEGE 1+ ERRZRERT

DI EER) A GREFEE R -
4. The number of H shares reported above by the relevant substantial shareholder does not 4. FHZHEIEEFERRIFE ZHK SR I

FARANGR-_ZFE——FNA+tH =F
—AFENA-F+AR-_FE—+tF+H-1+—H
HIATR R B ITE - T I R IR IR FE 5 R B B 1K
Bl 1+ ZRRIREB DLW EEZE  RIBHAE
HE#E -

RZZE—+tF+ A

=t BARAAEEEHNERARACELT
RA R EMEMAREERI AR -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND

ESEHRS (88

EF - EF SHHERAEREN

CHIEF EXECUTIVES

50

At the Board meeting convened on 29 March 2017, the Board
considered and approved:

(i) the resignation of Mr. Li Dakai as an executive director and a
member of the strategic development and investment committee
of the Company, with effect from 29 March 2017; and

(i) the resignation of Mr. Zhang Zhenhua as an independent non-
executive director and a member of each of the audit committee,
nomination committee and strategic development and investment
committee of the Company, with effect from 29 March 2017.

On 28 April 2017, Mr. Zhou Chongyi resigned as a vice president of the
Company.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2017, it
was considered and approved that Mr. Yuan Hongming and Mr. Yan
Jianbo shall be appointed as executive directors of the Company and Mr.
Li Hongwu shall be appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the Company.

At the Board meeting convened on 12 June 2017, the Board considered
and approved:

(i) the appointment of Mr. Yuan Hongming and Mr. Yan lJianbo as
members of the strategic development and investment committee
of the Company; and

(i)  the appointment of Mr. Li Hongwu as a member of each of the
audit committee and the nomination committee of the Company.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 30
August 2017, it was considered and approved that Mr. Wu Hongwei
shall be appointed as a supervisor of the Company.

At the conclusion of the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 30 August 2017, Ms. Jiang Jianfang resigned as a supervisor of
the Company.

On 31 August 2017, Mr. Li Dakai resigned as an executive president of
the Company.

At the Board meeting convened on 5 September 2017, the Board
considered and approved the appointment of Mr. Yuan Hongming and
Mr. Yan Jianbo as executive presidents of the Company.

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. MLahhBRMNDBERLD
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) EEERE (&)
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BFELtREXS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company and the Group had BE_Z—tHS+-_A=t—HLEE &
the following continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are RABEREEETIHBELRERS % F
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing RHMNETHABERBELTRAUZUAEY
Rules. iRE KRR -

List of Connected Persons who had transactions and the

relationship with the Group

Name of Connected Persons

Abbreviation

BEALZBEE

Relationship between the Connected
Persons and the Group

MEALTER 15 18 BEATHASE > BERR
Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Automotive Held a 49% interest in a subsidiary of the
PR EEEARE T AT PR E Company Shaanxi Heavy-duty

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd.

RIEL R TEEBHEE

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd.
IWRETREHFHARAA

Weichai Group Holdings Limited
SRS E AR AR

Chongging Weichai Diesel Engine Limited
BEEREEHRERAT

Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.
SRS OB R A A

Fast Transmission
FErEEE

Shandong Finance

LW EMH

Weichai Holdings
SRR

Chongging Weichai

Weichai Import and Export
MR O

Motor Co., Ltd. (“Shaanxi Zhongqi”)
BEARRAR B ARRAELTBEERAF
(MBRE )R 49% 5

Held a 49% interest in a subsidiary of the
Company, Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. (“SFGC")
BEARRRZWBRRRAEETHERERA

Bl ([BRAE L5 4R 1) 49%

Shandong Heavy Industry, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, indirectly held a
37.50% interest in Shandong Finance
RRFZFERRIIRET

B ILEPT537.50%

Held a 16.83% interest in the Company, one of
the Promoters of the Company

BN E]16.83% B » AABIERAZ—

Wholly-owned by Weichai Holdings
RN 2 2 AN E AT

Wholly-owned by Weichai Holdings
RN 2 EME AT
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Name of Connected Persons

Abbreviation

ESEHRS (88

Relationship between the Connected
Persons and the Group

BEATER 15 18 BEATHEASEEHZBERFZ
Weichai Power Westport New Energy Weichai Westport Weichai Holdings held a 51%
Engine Co., Ltd. FBFTREIR interest in Weichai Westport

HERTTEFTRERB AR A

Yangzhou Yaxing Motor Coach Co., Ltd.

BNEERERNARARF]

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd.
BRI AR AR]

Weichai Electrical Equipment Co., Ltd.
HREB N REAR DA

52 WEICHATI POWER Co., LTD.

Yangzhou Yaxing
HINEE

Weichai Heavy Machinery
SR

Weichai Electrical Equipment
HERENRE

AR NBRMNERAT

HESIER A P B HTREIRS1 % E

Indirectly held as to 51% by Weichai Holdings

AR IR BN 251 % a

Weichai Holdings held a 30.59%
interest in Weichai Heavy Machinery
ST R B M5 B 130,59 % 1 5

Wholly-owned by Weichai Heavy Machinery

HEREW 2 2 EME AR
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had continuing
connected transactions entered into in accordance with the following
agreements.

1.

Provision of general services and labour services by
Weichai Holdings and its associates to the Company and
its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the general services agreement entered into between the
Company and Weichai Holdings on 17 November 2003 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements, collectively
referred to as “Weichai Holdings General Services Agreement”), Weichai
Holdings (and its associates) has agreed to provide certain labour services
as well as general services, namely, environmental protection, security,
fire protection, repair, maintenance and other general services and the
payment of certain town land use right tax in relation to the property
occupied and/or used by the Company and/or other members of the
Group, to the Company, Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting and Forging
Co., Ltd. ("Weichai Casting”, a subsidiary of the Company), Shandong
Huadong Casting Co., Ltd. (“Huadong Casting”, a subsidiary of the
Company), Weichai Power (Weifang) Intensive Logistics Co., Ltd.
("Weichai Logistics”, a subsidiary of the Company) and other subsidiaries
of the Company. The fees payable by the Company and/or its
subsidiaries to Weichai Holdings (and its associates) with respect to the
provision of the said services are determined based on the actual costs
incurred by Weichai Holdings (and its associates) and apportioned on a
pro-rata basis according to the area of the relevant property occupied
and/or used by the Company and/or its subsidiaries plus a service charge
representing not more than 20% of such costs and settled by the parties
on a monthly basis.

Pursuant to the general services agreement entered into between the
Company and Chongging Weichai on 17 November 2003 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements, collectively
referred to as “Chongging Weichai General Services Agreement”),
Chongging Weichai (and its associates) has agreed to provide certain
general services to the Company’s Chongging branch office and/or other
members of the Group, namely, environmental protection, security, fire
protection, and other general services and the payment of certain town
land use right tax in relation to the property occupied and/or used by the
Company’s Chongging branch office and/or other members of the
Group. The fees payable by the Company’s Chongging branch office
and/or other members of the Group to Chongging Weichai (and its
associates) with respect to the provision of the said services are
determined based on the actual costs incurred by Chongging Weichai
(and its associates) and apportioned on a pro-rata basis according to the
area of the relevant property occupied and/or used by the Company’s
Chongging branch office and/or other members of the Group plus a
service charge not exceeding 20% of such costs (save that the town
land use right tax paid by Chongging Weichai (and its associates) on
behalf of the Company’s Chongging branch office and/or other
members of the Group will not be subject to the said 20% service
charge) and are settled by the parties on a monthly basis.

§$ ¥Eﬂ=(m§)
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Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the Weichai Holdings
General Services Agreement and the Chongging Weichai General
Services Agreement dated 30 August 2016, Weichai Holdings and
Chongging Weichai and their respective associates have agreed to
provide the said general services and labour services to the Company,
Weichai Casting, Huadong Casting, Weichai Logistics and/or other
subsidiaries of the Company on the same terms and for a period of
three years ending 31 December 2019, upon the expiry of which the
parties may extend the term for another three years on a mutually
agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid services provided by Weichai
Holdings and Chongging Weichai and their respective associates for the
year ended 31 December 2017 is RMB88 million. In the year ended 31
December 2017, the total amount charged by Weichai Holdings and
Chongging Weichai and their respective associates from the Company
and its subsidiaries for the said services was RMB29,322,445.

Supply and/or connection of utilities by Weichai
Holdings and its associates to the Company and its
subsidiaries

Pursuant to the utility services agreement entered into between the
Company and Weichai Holdings on 17 November 2003 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements, collectively
referred to as “Weichai Holdings Utilities Services Agreement”), Weichai
Holdings (and its associates) have agreed to provide or provide the
connection of certain utility and energy services to the Company,
Weichai Casting, Weichai Power Freshen Air Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Weichai Freshen Air”, a subsidiary of the Company) and other
subsidiaries of the Company, namely, water, electricity, gas, steam,
oxygen, nitrogen, compressed air, waste water treatment and supply of
treated waste water, etc. The fees payable by the Company and/or its
subsidiaries to Weichai Holdings (and its associates) with respect to the
provision of the said services are determined based on the actual usage
of the Company and/or its subsidiaries and by reference to the market
prices of such utilities. If only government published rates are available
with respect to certain utilities, the fees payable would be determined by
reference to the government published rates plus the wastage,
depreciation and repair expenses incurred by Weichai Holdings (and its
associates) in relation thereto. If no market price or government

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. MLahhBRMNDBERLD
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published rates with respect to the above utility and energy services are
available, the Company and/or its subsidiaries will pay the actual costs
incurred by Weichai Holdings (and its associates) in relation to the
provision of such utility and energy services plus a service charge
representing not more than 20% of such costs. In the year ended 31
December 2017, Weichai Holdings (and its associates) has been charging
the Company and its subsidiaries a service charge of 15% of the actual
costs incurred thereof. The fees are settled by the parties on a monthly
basis.

Pursuant to the utility services agreement entered into between the
Company and Chongging Weichai on 17 November 2003 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements, collectively
referred to as “Chongging Weichai Utilities Services Agreement”),
Chongging Weichai (and its associates) has agreed to provide or provide
the connection of certain utility and energy services to the Company’s
Chongging branch office and/or other members of the Group, namely,
water, electricity, natural gas, steam, oxygen, nitrogen and compressed
air, etc. The fees payable by the Company and/or its subsidiaries to
Chongging Weichai (and its associates) with respect to the provision of
the said services are determined based on the usage thereof by the
Company’s Chongging branch office and/or other members of the
Group or, if it is not possible to measure such usage, pro-rated
according to the respective sales of Chongqing Weichai and the
Company’s Chongging branch office and/or other members of the
Group and by reference to the market prices of such utilities. If only
government published rates are available with respect to certain utilities,
the fees payable will be determined by reference to the government
published rates plus the wastage, depreciation and repair expenses
incurred by Chongging Weichai (and its associates) in relation to the
provision of the relevant utilities. If no market prices or government
published rates with respect to the above utilities and energy services are
available, the Company and/or other members of the Group will pay the
actual costs incurred by Chongging Weichai and its associates in relation
to the provision of such utilities and energy services plus a service charge
representing not more than 20% of such costs. In the year ended 31
December 2017, Chongging Weichai and its associates have been
charging the Company and/or other members of the Group a service
charge of 20% of the actual costs incurred thereof. The fees are settled
by the parties on a monthly basis.
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Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the Weichai Holdings
Utilities Services Agreement and the Chongging Weichai Utilities Services
Agreement dated 30 August 2016, Weichai Holdings and Chongging
Weichai and their respective associates have agreed to provide or
provide the connection of the said utility and energy services to the
Company, Weichai Casting, Weichai Power (Weifang) Reproduction
Company Limited (“Weichai Reproduction”, a subsidiary of the
Company), Huadong Casting, Weichai Logistics, the Chongqing Branch
and/or other subsidiaries of the Company on the same terms and for a
period of three years ending 31 December 2019, upon the expiry of
which the parties may extend the term for another three years on a
mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid services provided by Weichai
Holdings and Chongging Weichai and their respective associates for the
year ended 31 December 2017 is RMB390 million. In the year ended 31
December 2017, the total amount charged by Weichai Holdings and
Chongging Weichai and their respective associates from the Company
and its subsidiaries for the said services was RMB358,820,994.

Purchase of diesel engine parts and components, gas,
scrap metals, materials, diesel engines and related
products and processing services by the Company and its
subsidiaries from Weichai Holdings and its associates

Pursuant to the purchase and processing services agreement entered
into between the Company, Weichai Holdings and Chongging Weichai
on 27 November 2008 (as amended and supplemented by various
supplemental agreements, collectively referred to as the “Weichai
Purchase and Processing Services Agreement”):

(i) the Company, Weichai Casting, Weichai Reproduction, Huadong
Casting, Weichai Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“Weichai Singapore”, a
subsidiary of the Company) and other subsidiaries of the Company
have agreed to purchase parts and components of diesel engines,
gas, scrap metals, materials, diesel engines and related products
from Weichai Holdings, Chongging Weichai, Weichai Import and
Export and other associates of Weichai Holdings; and
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(i) Weichai Holdings, Chongging Weichai, Weichai Import and Export
and other associates of Weichai Holdings have agreed to provide
processing services to the Company and its subsidiaries with
respect to the said parts and components of diesel engines, gas,
scrap metals, materials, diesel engines and related products.

The said purchases and processing services are transacted at market
prices and are settled by the parties on a monthly basis.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the Weichai Purchase
and Processing Services Agreement dated 30 August 2016, Weichai
Holdings, Chongging Weichai and Weichai Import and Export (and other
associates of Weichai Holdings) have agreed to provide the said products
and processing services to the Company, Weichai Casting, Weichai
Reproduction, Huadong Casting, Weichai Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“Weichai
Singapore”, a subsidiary of the Company), Shandong Heavy Industry
India Private Limited. (“Shandong India”, a subsidiary of the Company),
Weichai Middle East FZE (“Weichai Middle East”, a subsidiary of the
Company) and/or other subsidiaries of the Company on the same terms
and for a period of three years ending 31 December 2019, upon the
expiry of which the parties may extend the term for another three years
on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchases made and services
received from Weichai Holdings and its associates for the year ended 31
December 2017 is RMB840 million. In the year ended 31 December
2017, the total purchases made and processing services received by the
Company and its subsidiaries from Weichai Holdings and its associates
amounted to RMB529,616,777.
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Sale of diesel engines, diesel engine parts and
components, materials, semi-finished products and
related products and provision of processing services by
the Company and its subsidiaries to Weichai Holdings
and its associates

Pursuant to the sale and processing services agreement entered into
between the Company and Weichai Power (Weifang) After-sales Service
Co., Ltd. (“Weichai After-sales Services”, a subsidiary of the Company,
formally known as Weichai Power Reserves and Resources Company) as
suppliers and Weichai Holdings and its certain associates as customers
on 27 November 2008 (as amended and supplemented by various
supplemental agreements, collectively referred to as the “Weichai Sale
and Processing Service Agreement”), the Company (and its Chongging
branch office), Weichai After-sales Services, Weichai Casting, Weichai
Reproduction, Weichai Logistics and other subsidiaries of the Company
have agreed to (i) sell certain diesel engines, diesel engine parts and
components, materials, semi-finished products and related products, and
(i) provide certain processing services in relation to the production of
diesel engines to Weichai Holdings, Weichai Import and Export,
Chongging Weichai, Chongging City Jiangjin District Chongwei Casting
Co. Ltd. (which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Weichai Holdings and
subsequently absorbed and consolidated into Chongging Weichai) and
other associates of Weichai Holdings at market prices. The transactions
are settled by the parties on a monthly basis.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the Weichai Sale and
Processing Service Agreement dated 30 August 2017, the Company,
Weichai Casting, Weichai After-sales Services, Weichai Reproduction,
Weichai Logistics and other subsidiaries of the Company have agreed to
sell the said diesel engines, diesel engine parts and components,
materials, semi-finished products and related products, and provide the
said processing services to Weichai Holdings, Weichai Import and Export,
Chongging Weichai, and other associates of Weichai Holdings on the
same terms and for a period of three years ending 31 December 2019,
upon the expiry of which the parties may extend the term for another
three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales made and services
provided to Weichai Holdings and its associates for the year ended 31
December 2017 is RMB1.10 billion. In the year ended 31 December
2017, the total sales made and processing services provided by the
Company and its subsidiaries to Weichai Holdings and its associates
amounted to RMB881,739,148.
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Sale of diesel engines and related products by the
Company and its subsidiaries to Weichai Heavy
Machinery and its associates

The Company and Weichai Holdings entered into a framework
agreement on 17 November 2003 (as supplemented by various
supplemental agreements). The rights and obligations of Weichai
Holdings in the aforesaid agreement were assumed by Weichai Heavy
Machinery pursuant to the supplemental framework agreement entered
into between the Company and Weichai Heavy Machinery on 27 August
2015.

Pursuant to such framework agreement (as supplemented by various
supplemental agreements), the Company, Weichai Reproduction,
Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Engine Co., Ltd. (“Weichai Yangzhou”,
a subsidiary of the Company) and Baudouin (Weifang) Power Co., Ltd.
(“Baudouin China”, a subsidiary of the Company) and/or other
subsidiaries of the Company have agreed to sell to Weichai Heavy
Machinery, Weichai Electrical Equipment and/or other associates of
Weichai Heavy Machinery certain diesel engines and related products, at
market prices and settled on a monthly basis for a term ending 31
December 2018, upon the expiry of which the parties may extend the
term for another three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales of diesel engines and
related products to Weichai Heavy Machinery and/or its associates for
the year ended 31 December 2017 is RMB600 million. In the year ended
31 December 2017, the total sales of diesel engines and related
products made by the Company and its subsidiaries to Weichai Heavy
Machinery and/or its associates amounted to RMB263,119,895.
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Purchase of diesel engine parts and components,
materials, steel and scrap metal, diesel engines and
related products and the processing and labour services
by the Company and its subsidiaries from Weichai Heavy
Machinery and its associates

Pursuant to the purchase and processing services agreement entered
into between the Company and Weichai After-sales Services and
Weichai Heavy Machinery on 27 November 2008 (as supplemented by
various supplemental agreements), the Company (and its Chongging
branch office), Weichai After-sales Services, Weichai Casting, Weichai
Reproduction, Huadong Casting, Weichai Logistics, Baudouin China and/
or other members of the Group have agreed to purchase from Weichai
Heavy Machinery, Weichai Electrical Equipment and/or other associates
of Weichai Heavy Machinery certain diesel engine parts and
components, steel and scrap metal, materials, diesel engines and related
products and processing and labour services, at market prices and settled
on a monthly basis.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said framework
agreement dated 30 August 2016, the Company, Weichai After-sales
Services, Weichai Casting, Weichai Reproduction, Huadong Casting,
Weichai Logistics, Weichai Singapore, Baudouin China and/or other
members of the Group have agreed to purchase from Weichai Heavy
Machinery, Weichai Electrical Equipment and/or other associates of
Weichai Heavy Machinery the said diesel engine parts and components,
steel and scrap metal, materials, diesel engines and related products and
processing and labour services on the same terms and for a period of
three years ending 31 December 2019, upon the expiry of which the
parties may extend the term for another three years on a mutually
agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchases made and
processing services received from Weichai Heavy Machinery and/or its
associates for the year ended 31 December 2017 is RMB330 million. In
the year ended 31 December 2017, the total purchases made and
processing services received by the Company and other members of the
Group from Weichai Heavy Machinery and its associates amounted to
RMB326,455,979.
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Supply of semi-finished diesel engine parts, diesel
engine parts and components, reserve parts and related
products and provision of labour services by the
Company and its subsidiaries to Weichai Heavy
Machinery and its associates

The Company and Weichai Holdings entered into a semi-finished diesel
engine parts supply agreement on 17 November 2003 (as amended and
supplemented by various supplemental agreements). The rights and
obligations of Weichai Holdings in the aforesaid agreement were
assumed by Weichai Heavy Machinery pursuant to the supplemental
agreement entered into between the Company, Weichai Holdings and
Weichai Heavy Machinery on 27 August 2015.

Pursuant to such framework agreement (as supplemented by various
supplemental agreements), the Company, Weichai Reproduction,
Weichai After-sales Services, Weichai Casting, Huadong Casting, Weichai
Logistics and/or other subsidiaries of the Company have agreed to sell
certain semi-finished diesel engine parts, diesel engine parts and
components, reserve parts and related products and to provide the said
labour services to Weichai Heavy Machinery, Weichai Electrical
Equipment and/or its associates at market prices and settled on a
monthly basis for a period of three years ending 31 December 2018,
upon the expiry of which the parties may renew the term for another
three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid supply of semi-finished diesel
engine parts to Weichai Heavy Machinery and/or its associates for the
year ended 31 December 2017 is RMB400 million. In the year ended 31
December 2017, the total supply of semi-finished diesel engine parts,
diesel engine parts and components, reserve parts and related products
and provision of labour services by the Company and other members of
the Group to Weichai Heavy Machinery and its associates amounted to
RMB83,871,772.

Sale of parts and components of transmissions and
related products by SFGC to Fast Transmission

Pursuant to the parts and components sale agreement entered into
between SFGC and Fast Transmission on 1 August 2007 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements), SFGC has
agreed to sell to Fast Transmission certain parts and components of
transmissions, namely, gearboxes, and related products at market prices
and settled every two to three months, for a term of three years ending
31 December 2018, upon the expiry of which the parties shall have an
option to extend the term for another three years on a mutually agreed
basis.
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The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales of parts and
components of transmissions to Fast Transmission for the year ended 31
December 2017 is RMB4.8 billion. In the year ended 31 December 2017,
the total sales of parts and components of transmissions made by SFGC
to Fast Transmission amounted to RMB2,132,778,808.

Purchase of parts and components of transmissions and
related products by SFGC from Fast Transmission

Pursuant to the parts and components purchase agreement entered into
between SFGC and Fast Transmission on 1 August 2007 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements), SFGC has
agreed to purchase from Fast Transmission certain parts and
components of transmissions and gears, namely, power take off
assemblies and castings, and related products at market prices and
settled every two to three months, for a term of three years ending 31
December 2018, upon the expiry of which the parties shall have an
option to extend the term for another three years on a mutually agreed
basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchase of parts and
components of transmissions from Fast Transmission for the year ended
31 December 2017 is RMB6.0 billion. In the year ended 31 December
2017, the total purchases of parts and components of transmissions and
related products made by SFGC from Fast Transmission amounted to
RMB4,836,619,704.

Sale of vehicles, parts and components of vehicles, raw
materials and related products and provision of the
relevant services by Shaanxi Zhongqgi and its subsidiaries
and Weichai Freshen Air to Shaanxi Automotive and its
associates

Pursuant to the vehicles, parts and components and raw materials sale
and heat processing services agreement entered into between Shaanxi
Zhonggi and certain other subsidiaries of the Company as suppliers (the
“Shaanxi Suppliers”) and Shaanxi Automotive and its associates as
customers (the “Shaanxi Customers”) on 1 August 2007 (as
supplemented by various supplemental agreements), the Shaanxi
Suppliers and Weichai Freshen Air have agreed to sell certain vehicles,
parts and components of vehicles, raw materials and related products,
and provide the relevant services to the Shaanxi Customers, at market
prices and settled by the parties generally every one to three months.
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Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said framework
agreement dated 30 August 2016, the Shaanxi Suppliers and Weichai
Freshen Air have agreed to sell certain vehicles, parts and components of
vehicles, raw materials and related products, and provide the relevant
services to the Shaanxi Customers, at market prices and settled by the
parties generally every one to three months, for a term of three years
ending 31 December 2019, upon the expiry of which the parties shall
have an option to renew the agreement for a term of three years on a
mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales of vehicles, parts and
components of vehicles, raw materials and related products and
provision of the relevant services to Shaanxi Automotive and its
associates for the year ended 31 December 2017 is RMB4.55 billion. In
the year ended 31 December 2017, the total sales of vehicles, parts and
components of vehicles, raw materials and related products and
provision of the relevant services by Shaanxi Zhonggi and its subsidiaries
and Weichai Freshen Air to Shaanxi Automotive and its associates
amounted to RMB1,911,165,708.

Purchase of parts and components of vehicles, scrap
steel and related products and labour services by
Shaanxi Zhongqgi and its subsidiaries and Weichai
Freshen Air from Shaanxi Automotive and its associates
Pursuant to the parts and components and scrap steel purchase
agreement entered into between Shaanxi Zhonggi and certain other
subsidiaries of the Company as buyers (the “Shaanxi Buyers”) and
certain associates of Shaanxi Automotive as sellers (the “Shaanxi
Sellers”) on 1 August 2007 (as supplemented by various supplemental
agreements), the Shaanxi Buyers have agreed to purchase certain parts
and components of vehicles, scrap steel, related products and labour
services from the Shaanxi Sellers, at market prices and settled by the
parties every one to three months.
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Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said framework
agreement dated 14 July 2017, the Shaanxi Buyers and Weichai Freshen
Air have agreed to purchase certain parts and components of vehicles,
scrap steel, related products and labour services from the Shaanxi Sellers
on the same terms, for a term of three years ending 31 December 2019,
upon the expiry of which the parties shall have an option to renew the
agreement for a term of three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchases of parts and
components of vehicles, scrap steel, related products and labour services
from Shaanxi Automotive and its associates for the year ended 31
December 2017 is RMB7.2 billion. In the year ended 31 December 2017,
the total purchases of parts and components of vehicles, scrap steel and
related products and labour services made by Shaanxi Zhonggi and its
subsidiaries from Shaanxi Automotive and its associates amounted to
RMB6,407,165,153.

Sale of engines, new energy powertrain and related
products by the Company and its subsidiaries to
Yangzhou Yaxing and its subsidiaries

The diesel engines supply framework agreement entered into between
the Company and Yangzhou Yaxing on 26 October 2012 (as
supplemented by various supplemental agreements) sets out the general
terms and conditions for the sale of engines and related products by the
Company and Weichai Yangzhou to Yangzhou Yaxing and its
subsidiaries. Pursuant to the said framework agreement, the Company
and its subsidiaries have agreed to sell certain engines, new energy
powertrains and related products to Yangzhou Yaxing and its
subsidiaries from time to time with reference to market prices and
settled on a monthly basis for a period of two years ended 31 December
2017, upon the expiry of which the parties may renew the term for
another three years on a mutually agreed basis. The transactions shall be
subject to normal commercial terms and terms no less favourable to the
Company than those available to the Company from independent third
parties.
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The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales of engines, new energy
powertrain and related products by the Company and its subsidiaries to
Yangzhou Yaxing and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2017 is RMB1,088 million. In the year ended 31 December 2017, the
total sales of engines, new energy powertrain and related products
made by the Company and its subsidiaries to Yangzhou Yaxing and its
subsidiaries amounted to RMB270,019,756.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said framework
agreement dated 28 March 2018, the Company, Weichai Logistics and/
or other subsidiaries of the Company have agreed to sell engines, new
energy powertrains and related products to Yangzhou Yaxing and its
subsidiaries on the same terms for a term of three years ending 31
December 2020, upon the expiry of which the parties may renew the
term for another three years on a mutually agreed basis.

Sale of transmissions by SFGC to Yangzhou Yaxing and
its subsidiaries

The transmissions supply framework agreement entered into between
SFGC and Yangzhou Yaxing on 26 October 2012 (as supplemented by
various supplemental agreements) sets out the general terms and
conditions for the sale of transmissions by SFGC to Yangzhou Yaxing
and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to the said transmissions supply framework
agreement, SFGC has agreed to sell the said transmissions to Yangzhou
Yaxing and its subsidiaries from time to time with reference to market
prices and settled on a monthly basis, for a period of three years ended
31 December 2017, upon the expiry of which the parties shall have an
option to extend the term for another three years on a mutually agreed
basis. The transactions shall be subject to normal commercial terms and
terms no less favourable to SFGC than those available to SFGC from
independent third parties.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sale of transmissions by SFGC
to Yangzhou Yaxing and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2017 is RMB28.8 million. In the year ended 31 December 2017, the
actual transaction amount of such sales was RMB6,495,692.

%% ¥E¢(1||§)

13.

Eﬁi

T—+tF+-_A=+—HLHF
N $A7&ﬁm% AAH M E R
HNBARIEEESE MRS 42
KEERERONCHEFELRAA
R #1,088,000000t c B E T —+ F
FTZA=F+—BLEFE A2 REKH
ENRBBMNTENENREBERRHEE
BER MRS NBRKREEE DD
4z A AR 270,019,756 7T ©

REZLEAERBER-_FT-NF=
AZ+NBRINZ &M@ RBE A0
BlMREHOR /AR EMLEE L
AIARBRGRABMEE REHNER

A 5 B B i 3 62 R B ) 48 7 T AR B
ES FME-F-FFT A=t
BLEAM=F RERASSTREE
Eips BB

BREEZTSEROBMNEERA
MEBAREERRER
RZE—ZF+AZ+ "B BREAZEL
'ﬁﬁ?éﬁ%)”ﬁﬁ% RN B OREHEE
Epm(EzEMABEHER)  HaER
ERAELFERASMNE R R EM
BARIHEZRE 2 —RER KRG
BE ol &R A R PR
THEGRETK2EMERBMNE
ERENBARBES RS LKXEA
EREFE - MHEFHAREZ T —+tF
TZA=F+—RA1 RE=F-RER
BrEFUBEEEHE RBE=F-%
SEBR—MBEAERRARIRERA
AT HEGMETERERBLE =
T RIS 2 R AT »

:E/\
=T X

HE-_Z—tF+-_A=Z+—81Lt#HF
Jﬁ CPREETRHERRBMNEE R EK

NEIHEERENEHAEFE LR
Z\E\ffr}\EZ&SOO,OOOTE’ HE-_Z—+F
+Z A=+ BLFEHEXINE
PR AR A AR ¥6,495,692 T ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 £E#R 65




DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

14.

66

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said framework
agreement dated 28 March 2018, SFGC has agreed to sell the said
transmission to Yangzhou Yaxing and its subsidiaries on the same terms
for a term of three years ending 31 December 2020, upon the expiry of
which the parties may renew the term for another three years on a
mutually agreed basis.

Sale of axles by Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. (“Hande
Axle”, a subsidiary of Shaanxi Zhongqi) to Yangzhou
Yaxing and its subsidiaries

The axles supply framework agreement entered into between Hande
Axle and Yangzhou Yaxing on 26 October 2012 (as supplemented by
various supplementary agreements) sets out the general terms and
conditions for the sales of axles by Hande Axle to Yangzhou Yaxing and
its subsidiaries. Pursuant to the said axles supply framework agreement,
Hande Axle has agreed to sell the said axles to Yangzhou Yaxing and its
subsidiaries from time to time with reference to market prices and with
a payment term of two months, and for a period of three years ended
31 December 2017, upon the expiry of which the parties shall have an
option to extend the term for another three years on a mutually agreed
basis. The transactions shall be subject to normal commercial terms and
terms no less favourable to Hande Axle than those available to Hande
Axle from independent third parties.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sale of axles by Hande Axle
to Yangzhou Yaxing and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2017 is RMB154 million. In the year ended 31 December 2017, the sales
of axles made by Hande Axle to Yangzhou Yaxing and its subsidiaries
was RMB46,175,847.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said framework
agreement dated 28 March 2018, Hande Axle has agreed to sell the said
axles to Yangzhou Yaxing and its subsidiaries on the same terms for a
term of three years ending 31 December 2020, upon the expiry of which
the parties may renew the term for another three years on a mutually
agreed basis.
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Provision of financial services to the Company and its
subsidiaries by Shandong Finance

Pursuant to the financial services agreement entered into between the
Company and Shandong Finance on 21 March 2013 (and the new
financial services agreement dated 30 March 2016), Shandong Finance
has agreed to provide, inter alia, certain deposit services to the Company
and its subsidiaries for a period ending 29 June 2019, upon the expiry of
which the parties may extend the term for another three years on a
mutually agreed basis.

Shandong Finance shall provide certain deposit services to the Group,
the principal terms of which are as follows:

(@  the interest rate for the deposit of the Group’s funds with
Shandong Finance shall, subject to the compliance of the relevant
requirements of the People’s Bank of China, be no less than the
highest interest rate for the same type of deposit offered by the
major commercial banks for the same period; and

(b)  the maximum daily balance (including interests) of the Group’s
deposit with Shandong Finance shall not exceed RMB9 billion from
30 June 2013 to 29 June 2014, RMB10.8 billion from 30 June
2014 to 29 June 2015, RMB13 billion from 30 June 2015 to 29
June 2016, RMB17 billion from 30 June 2016 to 29 June 2017,
RMB19 billion from 30 June 2017 to 29 June 2018, and RMB20
billion from 30 June 2018 to 29 June 2019.

During the period from 1 January 2017 to 29 June 2017, the maximum
daily balance (including interests) of the Group’s deposit in Shandong
Finance amounted to RMB11,479,887,274, whereas during the period
from 30 June 2017 to 31 December 2017, the maximum daily balance
(including interests) of the Group’s deposit in Shandong Finance
amounted to RMB17,206,846,710.
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16.

68

Supply of base engines, gas engine parts, utility and
labour services, technology development services and
related products and services by the Company and its
subsidiaries and associates to Weichai Westport

Pursuant to the framework supply agreement entered into between the
Company, Weichai Reproduction, Weichai After-sales Services and
Weichai Westport on 25 December 2012 (as amended and
supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 8 December 2014,
collectively referred to as the “Weichai Westport Supply Agreement”),
each of the Company, Weichai After-sales Services, Weichai
Reproduction, Weichai Freshen Air and other associates of the Company
has agreed to supply certain base engines, gas engine parts, utility and
labour services, technology development services and related products
and services to Weichai Westport, at market prices and/or prices agreed
according to the principle of fairness and reasonableness and settled on
a monthly basis for a term from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017,
upon the expiry of which the parties may extend the term for three years
on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid supply of certain base
engines, gas engine parts, utility and labour services, technology
development services and related products and services for the year
ended 31 December 2017 is RMB3.9 billion. In the year ended 31
December 2017, the total supply of the said products and services by
the Company (and its subsidiaries) to Weichai Westport amounted to
RMB2,569,344,325.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said Weichai
Westport Supply Agreement dated 14 July 2017, each of the Company,
Weichai After-sales Services, Weichai Reproduction and Weichai Freshen
Air (and/or other associates of the Company) shall supply certain base
engines, gas engine parts, utility and labour services, technology
development services and related products and services to Weichai
Westport, on the same terms for a term from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2020, upon the expiry of which the parties may extend the
term for three years on a mutually agreed basis.
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17.

Purchase of gas engines, gas engine parts, labour
services and related products and services by the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates from
Weichai Westport

Pursuant to the framework purchase agreement entered into between
the Company, Weichai Reproduction and Weichai After-sales Services
and Weichai Westport on 25 December 2012 (as amended and
supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 8 December 2014,
collectively referred to as the “Weichai Westport Purchase Agreement”),
each of the Company, Weichai After-sales Services, Weichai
Reproduction and other associates of the Company has agreed to
purchase certain gas engines, gas engine parts, labour services and
related products and services from Weichai Westport, at market prices
and/or prices agreed according to the principle of fairness and
reasonableness and settled on a monthly basis for a term from 1 January
2015 to 31 December 2017, upon the expiry of which the parties may
extend the term for three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchase of gas engines, gas
engine parts, labour services and related products and services for the
year ended 31 December 2017 is RMB6.0 billion. In the year ended 31
December 2017, the total purchase of the said products and services by
the Company (and its subsidiaries) from Weichai Westport amounted to
RMB4,444,722,873.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said Weichai
Westport Purchase Agreement dated 14 July 2017, each of the
Company, Weichai After-sales Services, Weichai Reproduction and
Weichai Freshen Air (and/or other associates of the Company) shall
purchase certain gas engines, gas engine parts, labour services and
related products and services from Weichai Westport, on the same terms
for a term from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020, upon the expiry
of which the parties may extend the term for three years on a mutually
agreed basis.
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18.

70

Provision of logistics and storage services by Weichai
Logistics (and/or its associates) to Weichai Westport
Pursuant to the framework logistics agreement on 25 December 2012
(as amended and supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 8
December 2014, collectively referred to as the “Weichai Westport
Logistics Agreement”) entered into between Weichai Logistics and
Weichai Westport, Weichai Logistics (and/or its associates) has agreed to
provide certain logistics and storage services to Weichai Westport for the
transportation of certain products and after-sale components, at market
price of comparable services and settled on a monthly basis, for a term
from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017, upon the expiry of which
the parties may extend the term for three years on a mutually agreed
basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid provision of logistics and
storage services for the year ended 31 December 2017 is RMB25.92
million. In the year ended 31 December 2017, the provision of the said
services by Weichai Logistics (and/or its associates) to Weichai Westport
amounted to RMB8,889,184.

The annual cap for the above provision of services for the term from 1
January 2015 to 31 December 2017 did not exceed the 0.1% threshold
referred to in Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules, and, accordingly, are
not subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The relevant terms and annual caps of the Weichai Westport Logistics
Agreement are disclosed herein for the Shareholders’ information.
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19. Leasing of factory buildings by the Company to Weichai
Westport
Pursuant to the leasing agreement on 25 December 2012 (as amended
and supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 8 December
2014, collectively referred to as the “Weichai Westport Leasing
Agreement”) entered into between the Company and Weichai Westport,
the Company has agreed to lease certain factory buildings to Weichai
Westport for a term from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017. Upon
expiry of the Weichai Westport Leasing Agreement, the parties may
renew the term for another three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid lease of certain factory
buildings for the year ended 31 December 2017 is RMB15 million. In the
year ended 31 December 2017, the total rental income received by the
Company from Weichai Westport amounted to RMB7,165,138.

The annual cap for the aforesaid lease of certain factory buildings for the
term from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 did not exceed the
0.1% threshold referred to in Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules, and,
accordingly, is not subject to the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The relevant terms and annual caps of the Weichai
Westport Leasing Agreement are disclosed herein for the Shareholders’
information.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions set out above and have confirmed that
these continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or
on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

EEEHS (88

19. 7R T 6 7 8 #EE R A R =

BREARRBEABNERR-_ZE—ZF
+-— AT IHEHBFUNEETHAER
EEZE—OMF+ A NRELNE
HBEETRER GEAIMBELEES
HEWED  AQRRERASHNER
HHEETHE BEHERB T —AF
—A-BBRE-_ZT—+tF+_A=1+—
HiE-REmEE R EsEns
AE =4 o

HMELtiimMEEEZE_ZT—t&+=A
S+ —HLEFEZE&UEFE LR B
A R #15,000,000c° B &2 =T — £ F
+ZA=+—BLEFEE AR EAA
BHERKDNEcBEEEAARE
7,165,138 7T °
"—_E—RHF—A—BRBRE_ZT—+tF
+ZA=+— 88— FHBERERE
HR 5 EREARBBETRBI14A.76(1)
IR TE AR TERNO1% » A I 48 FE
ZRXHG IR EMHABNFE1AAE R E AR -
NERBIBREIHEMNBRETELHOR XX
WENHSLASHEEREANRABEIER
MEELIREAREREEEMA-

ARRBIHRAUTEFCEHN LXAEANF
BUHRERS UTHIAZSHFELEBERS
TWEAEBS —REAEEBBIED (i)
B-—REAEGRITBERBLE=T ALK
AREREZGI RINRBEREZTRS
ZHBBRIT L HEEKXAFAEREFTA
ARARBRRZBEME -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 £ 3R 71



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

The auditors have issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the above continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

In the letter the auditors have confirmed and stated that:

a. nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been approved by
the Company’s board of directors.

b. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group.

C. nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions.

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out above, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap as approved by
the Company.

A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered into the
following connected transactions which were not exempt from the annual
review and disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of such connected transactions have been disclosed in compliance with
the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

72 WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. MLahhBRMNDBERLD

ESEHRS (88

BRETE R L TIRAIE 1 4A S6HER i
MEXPEARALEBRERNEREERE
o

PR BB R P HER B dE i

a BEHMEIBRICEMAFTEHSHEM
ERARENKELBERZIALRKER
NRABEEEHAE -

b. FREBRHEMIMBNRZME
FEHMEIZINENEFERSHEM
ERXRGAFEZTERTEREEEN
EBBRETT -

¢« BEHMEIBICEAMFTEHSHEM
EXZAUNFAEEERTHEARBERES
R 7 K H R e 1T

d HREAKBEUBEXZINIZRLEM
FORSEHMEIRIEANEERSRS
HEMRENKELHERZBHA
RAMENESFERLE -

ARFEAEEHAE R HHERA AR LD
DB o

FEX %
RBE-ZT—+tF+-A=+-BLFE
AEMTLTIHITERRET EDAYE
ABNGEBMRBEBERAENWRERS -
EHHEXSHBEEREDRIF AR
B E T AR -
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List of Connected Persons who had transactions and the
relationship with the Group

Name of Connected Persons Abbreviation
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HRAEEFEHEERRNBEERSZN
BEALTZBE

Relationship between the Connected
Persons and the Group

BEALER 2 78 BMEATHEAER 2 BEBE
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. Shandong Heavy Industry A substantial shareholder of the Company
IWRETEEBRRQA IWRET RRAz FERR

Shantui Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd,
HLHE TAZ R 19 B PR R R

Shantui Engineering

TR

Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd

IWEREEERRAR LWEREHE

1. Capital contributions to Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd
On 27 April 2017, the Company, Shaanxi Zhonggi, Shandong Heavy
Industry, Shantui Engineering and Weichai Heavy Machinery (collectively,
the "Existing Shareholders”) entered into a capital increase agreement
with Shanzhong Finance Leasing, pursuant to which the Existing
Shareholders conditionally agreed to increase the registered capital of
Shanzhong Finance Leasing by an aggregate amount of RMB180 million
through the making of capital contributions to Shanzhong Finance
Leasing by the Existing Shareholders in proportion to their then current
respective interest in Shanzhong Finance Leasing, partially in cash and
partially by the conversion of undistributed profit. The aggregate capital
contribution made by the Company and Shaanxi Zhonggi amounted to
approximately RMB70.43 million.

As the capital contributions to be made to Shanzhong Finance Leasing
will be used as Shanzhong Finance Leasing’s working capital, such
capital contributions will strengthen the financial position and
competitiveness of Shanzhong Finance Leasing, which are expected to
allow it to provide better leasing and financing services to the end-users
of the relevant engineering machinery, diesel engines and heavy-duty
vehicles sold by the Group. The said capital increase was completed on
10 July 2017, upon which the proportion of the equity interest in
Shanzhong Finance Leasing held by each of the Existing Shareholders
remained unchanged.

Shanzhong Finance Leasing

A subsidiary of Shandong Heavy Industry
IWRETLZ HEAT

Held as to approximately 60.87% by Shandong
Heavy Industry, Shantui Engineering and Weichai
Heavy Machinery
BILRET - LTRGBS
#360.87%
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2. Capital contributions to Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Finance Co., Ltd.
On 30 August 2017, the Company, SFGC, Shandong Heavy Industry,
Weichai Heavy Machinery and Shantui Engineering entered into a capital
increase agreement with Shandong Finance, pursuant to which the
Company, SFGC and Shandong Heavy Industry conditionally agreed to
make cash capital contributions to Shandong Finance in an aggregate
amount of approximately RMB972 million. The aggregate capital
contributions made by the Company and SFGC amounted to RMB648
million.

The making of the capital contributions to Shandong Finance under the
said capital increase agreement will strengthen the financial position and
competitiveness of Shandong Finance, which is expected to allow
Shandong Finance to provide better financial services to the Group. The
capital contributions made by the Company and SFGC will also enable
the Group to increase its equity holding percentage in Shandong Finance
and in turn allow the Group to further benefit from Shandong Finance’s
profits. The said capital increase was completed on 27 December 2017,
upon which the equity interest in Shandong Finance held by the Group
increased from 20% to 37.5%, whereas the equity interest in Shandong
Finance held by Shandong Heavy Industry and its subsidiaries decreased
from to 80% to 62.5%.

Apart from the continuing connected transactions and connected transaction
disclosed above, all of the related party transactions as set out in Note X to the
financial statements of the Group do not constitute continuing connected
transactions or connected transactions of the Company which are required to
comply with the relevant annual review, disclosure or shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT PoLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”)
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements that enabled the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”) or the laws of the PRC, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

INCOME TAX FOR H SHAREHOLDERS

According to the regulations in the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Implementation Regulations on Enterprise Income Tax Law
of People’s Republic of China which came into effect in 2008 and the Notice
of the State Administration of Taxation on Issues Relating to the Withholding
and Remittance of Enterprise Income Tax on Dividends Paid by Chinese
Resident Enterprises to Overseas Non-resident Enterprises which hold H Shares
(Guo Shui Han [2008] No. 897) (KB F B /E R (B ¥ MR IMNHAR FEE R &
EREIRERSRMR B ZEMEH A /R E & @ ) (B T K[2008]897
g%)) issued by China’s State Administration of Taxation on 6 November 2008
(collectively, the “Tax Law"”), any domestic enterprise of the PRC which pays
dividends to non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined in the Tax Law)
for the year of 2008 and thereafter shall withhold and remit enterprise income
tax with the payer as withholding agent. After receiving dividends, non-
resident enterprise shareholders may, where applicable, apply for tax refund
pursuant to relevant requirements under tax treaty (arrangement).

In accordance with the Tax Law, the Company is obliged to withhold and remit
enterprise income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the non-resident
enterprise holders of H Shares whose names appear on the register of
members for H Shares of the Company on the Record Date when distributing
dividends to them. For holders of H Shares who are registered in the name of
non-natural person registered shareholders (including HKSCC (Nominees)
Limited, other corporate nominees, trustees, or other organisations or groups
which are all treated as “non-resident enterprise” shareholders) on the register
of members for H Shares of the Company on the Record Date, the Company
will distribute the cash dividends, after withholding for payment of 10%
enterprise income tax.
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Pursuant to the Notice on the Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Program of the
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect (M EBREMIHEX H E 5 @
HH A AR WE R A BA), for mainland corporate investors that
invest in a company via the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, corporate
income tax will be levied according to the law. In particular, for any dividend
to be distributed to resident enterprises in the mainland China which hold H
shares for more than 12 consecutive months, corporate income tax may be
exempted according to the law. Such mainland enterprises shall declare and
pay taxes by themselves in respect of such dividends, which will not be
withheld by such H share company.

According to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation on Certain Policies Regarding Individual Income Tax
(Caishui [1994] No. 20) K B &F - IR G A R BN E A TS & T I
KEEHBMN) (B F [1994]520%%)), foreign individual resident
shareholders are exempt from personal income tax in respect of the dividends
or bonus received from domestic foreign invested enterprises for now. As the
Company is a foreign invested enterprise, for all natural person shareholders
whose names are registered on the register of members for H Shares of the
Company on the Record Date, the Company does not need to withhold
personal income tax. The Company shall obtain latest updates by consulting
relevant tax authorities in the PRC in due course.

In respect of dividends for the H shares of a company invested in by mainland
individual investors on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through the Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Stock Connect, the H share company shall apply to China
Securities Depository and Clearing Co.,Ltd., which will then provide the H
share company with the register of mainland individual investors. The H share
company shall withhold an individual income tax at the rate of 20% on such
dividends.

For dividends received by investors (including enterprise and individual
investors) in the Hong Kong market from investing in A shares listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and before Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited is able to furnish China Securities Depository and Clearing
Co., Ltd. with the identity, holding period and other detailed data of the
investors in the Hong Kong market , the differentiated tax treatment based on
the holding period of shares will not be implemented temporarily. Listed
companies shall withhold income tax at the rate of 10% and make
withholding filings with the relevant tax authorities. For those investors who
are tax residents of other countries and the tax rate applicable to dividends is
lower than 10% under the tax treaty between China and the relevant
countries, such investors may, by themselves or request the withholding agent
to act on their behalf to, apply to the relevant tax authorities in respect of the
listed company for the preferential relevant treatment under the relevant
treaties. With the approval of the relevant tax authorities, the amount being
the difference between the tax withheld and the tax calculated at the rate as
prescribed under the corresponding tax treaty shall be refunded.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

If anyone would like to change the identity of the holders in the register of
members, please enquire about the relevant procedures with the nominees or
trustees. The Company will withhold for payment of the enterprise income tax
for its non-resident enterprise shareholders strictly in accordance with the
relevant laws and requirements of the relevant government departments and
adhere strictly to the information set out in the Company’s register of
members on the Record Date.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales during the Year attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were less than 30% of the Group's total sales.

The aggregate purchase during the Year attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year did a director, a
supervisor, a close associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company,
which to the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital, have an interest in any of the Group's five largest
suppliers or customers.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 28 March 2018, the Company's 2017 profit distribution proposal was
approved by the Company’s seventh meeting of the fourth session of the
Board. The Company proposed a distribution to all shareholders of a cash
dividend of RMB2.50 (including tax) for every 10 shares held, based on the
total share capital of 7,997,238,556 shares as of 31 December 2017, without
any capitalisation of reserve. Completion of the proposal is subject to the
consideration and approval by the 2017 Annual General Meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND ITS IMPLEMENTATION

The Group keeps itself updated with and ensures the strict compliance with all
such relevant environmental laws and regulations as applicable in the
respective jurisdictions. Meanwhile, all-rounded and comprehensive internal
management system and rules are in place to ensure the effective
implementation of relevant policies and regulations.

During the year, the Group passed the ISO14001 environmental management
system certification. During the course of production, hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are also disposed of in a safe and efficient manner, without
polluting the environment. Pollutants so produced are in compliance with
national or local emission standards. The Group has never been included in any
list of highly-polluting enterprises by environmental authorities, nor has it been
penalized by any environmental authorities.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group keeps itself updated with and ensures the strict compliance with all
such relevant laws and regulations as applicable in the respective jurisdictions.
During the year, the Group has complied with all applicable relevant laws and
regulations in the respective jurisdictions in all material respects.

MAJOR RELATIONSHIPS INVOLVING THE GROUP

(1) Employees
In compliance with relevant laws and regulations in the respective
jurisdictions, and in strict adherence to the strategy of “People Come
First”, a safe and good working environment and experience as well a
sound system of remuneration and benefits is provided to employees to
attract, retain and motivate the employees. The management team and
staff team of the Group have been stable. During the year, the Group
considered that the relationship with its employees and the turnover rate
were acceptable.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

(2) Suppliers

With mergers and reorganisation on a global basis and overseas market
expansion, the Group owns production factories in many nations and
regions and its suppliers are all over the world. Currently, the Group is in
the course of forming its global supply chain system. All major suppliers
have close and long-term relationship with the Group. During the year,
the Group considered that the relationship with suppliers was sound and
stable.

(3) Customers

With the "Objective of customer satisfaction”, the Group steadfastly
believes that “Quality is the most significant duty owed to customers”
and sees quality as a “life-changing” factor for an enterprise. Directed
by the strategic notion of “Directed by policy, sharing of channels and
achieving win-win development”, the Group focuses on enhancing
customer satisfaction and strenuously builds up the Weichai service
brand. During the year, the Group achieved 100% passing rate in all
provincial sample testing and entrusted examination. No significant
incidents of quality safety have occurred. The Group considered that the
relationship with assembling factories and users were sound and stable.

(4) Society
With the notion of “Developing economy and service the community”,
the Group goes beyond its own growth to actively perform its social
responsibilities to contribute to society, spread its positive energy as a
corporation and strives to achieve win-win development vis-a-vis society,
gaining recognition from different sectors of society.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises all
independent non-executive directors of the Company. The chairman of the
Audit Committee is Mr. Wang Gongyong, an independent non-executive
director. Mr. Wang has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, for the purpose of this appointment. Throughout the year, the
Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the
financial results and internal control matters of the Company. In accordance
with the requirements of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the Audit
Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements for the
Year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

CoMPLIANCE WIiTH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
IN APPENDIX 14 TO THE LISTING RULES

During the Year, other than the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer being performed by Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan") and directors not
being able to attend all annual general meeting and extraordinary general
meetings due to other important work-related affairs, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Mr. Tan is in charge of the overall management of the Company. The
Company considers that the combination of the roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Company'’s strategies which will enable the Group to
grasp business opportunities efficiently and promptly. The Company considers
that through the supervision of its board and its independent non-executive
directors, there is adequate balance of power and authority in place.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MoDeL CoDE

During the Year, the Company adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less than the required standard set out in
the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code during the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PuBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The Company appointed Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (% 7k #EBA & 51 A =
T ET (4 0k @ A 1K) as the Company's only auditors with effect from 18
May 2011 for its accounts prepared under PRC accounting principles and
financial regulations. Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (% 7k % B8 & 51 B == 75 Fir
(B ok E@mA 1)) will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company for the year of 2018 will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

80 WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. HLshhRRBERAD

ESEHRS (88

8 <7 & AR R BT 8 + 00 Pl 8K 89 {F
FEIBTR

RAFE BREBRXEE(EELEDEER
RAEEERERATERARAEEHER
FENARSEAMEEAHES MALS
REBARARRAFAGRBRREANAE
SN AR AR — BT T A M 8 AT
[ 2 & 58 <7 Bl M P <F AR X -

BALAEARAZEREE -ARARAS
EELEARBREIEERREFATEANE
ARREABMEE RATARE Z KA
M AEEERNERMARMILEETE -
AREEE BEEEEEREBIIERNT
EECEE MERNEFBETE-

BTIRESR

RAFRE ARACHREFETEFRIFIK
MBRTER BEBGERTLRESTRIREN
BERR BEFENE2REEFFHEEED
D FENLEFASETEREESTRMR
BREMEE-

RERRERE
BREFDAESZAMENLRAARNES
Fism ADARARETEAHERS LTS

BIFFRENRRFTRE -

% 8% 6
ZXERAGHMEBAEREBESKR =
E-——FRAATNBEZESARRRESD
BEesr 2R BROIGR KB HE—=Z
e WOKERAGHMEFAMFREBS N
BREARAZEE  A2AERAERE
BEREREEBEA/AARAZT-NFE
2 12 B o



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year were approved by
the Board on 28 March 2018.

PUBLICATION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT ON THE
WEBSITES OF THE HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE
AND THE COMPANY

The 2017 annual report of the Company will be despatched to the
shareholders as well as made available on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's
website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at
www.weichaipower.com in due course.

On behalf of the Board

Tan Xuguang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong,
28 March 2018
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

In 2017, in accordance with relevant requirements including the Company
Law, the Articles of Association and the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory
Committee, in compliance with the principle of integrity, all members of the

Supervisory Committee of Weichai Power Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) (the
“Supervisory Committee”) performed their duties of supervision by exercising
effective supervision and examination, in a lawful manner, of the Company’s
procedures of making operational decisions, its state of operation, its financial

conditions and its acquisition and disposal of assets and material connected

transactions, thereby providing strong support to the Company’s regulated

operations and healthy development, and protecting the legitimate interests of
the Company and its investors.

I.

82

WEICHAI PowER Co., LTD.

DETAILS OF CONVENING MEETINGS OF THE
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

In this year, the Company held four meetings of the Supervisory
Committee.

On 29 March 2017, the fifth meeting of the fourth session of the
Supervisory Committee was convened, during which the
Supervisory Committee considered and approved the full text and
summary of the 2016 annual report of the Company, the work
report of the Supervisory Committee for 2016, the financial report
and auditors’ report for 2016, the final financial report for 2016,
the financial budget report 2017, profit distribution proposal for
2016, the re-appointment of Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP as the
Company’s auditors for the year 2017, the re-appointment of
Shandong Hexin Accountants LLP as the internal control auditors
of the Company for the year 2017, the internal control self-
evaluation report for 2016 and the internal audit report for 2016.

On 27 April 2017, the first provisional meeting of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company in 2017 was convened, during which
the Supervisory Committee considered and approved the 2017
first quarterly report of the Company. The contents of the report
gave a true, accurate and complete view of the actual situation of
the listed company and do not contain false statements,
misleading representations or material omissions.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE 'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

On 30 August 2017, the sixth meeting of the fourth session of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company was convened, during
which the Supervisory Committee considered and approved the
full text and summary of the 2017 interim report of the Company,
change in accounting policies, the implementation of the 2017
interim profit distribution proposal by the Company and the
provision for impairment of assets in the first half of 2017. The
contents of the interim report gave a true, accurate and complete
view of the actual situation of the listed company and do not
contain false statements, misleading representations or material
omissions.

On 30 October 2017, the second provisional meeting of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company in 2017 was convened,
during which the Supervisory Committee considered and approved
the 2017 third quarterly report of the Company and the provision
for impairment of assets in the third quarter of 2017. The contents
of the third quarterly report gave a true, accurate and complete
view of the actual situation of the listed company and do not
contain false statements, misleading representations or material
omissions.

IT. OPINION OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE ON
SUPERVISED MATTERS OF THE COMPANY IN THE
REPORTING PERIOD

1.

Compliance of the Company’s operations with legal
requirements

During the reporting period, pursuant to the laws and regulations
of the PRC and the Articles of Association, the Supervisory
Committee duly supervised the convening procedures and
resolutions of general meetings of Shareholders and meetings of
the Board, the Board's execution of resolutions approved at
general meetings of shareholders, the performance of duties by
the senior management of the Company. The Supervisory
Committee is of the view that the Board and the senior
management of the Company performed their duties with
integrity and diligence, made decisions in a scientific approach,
maintained sound production and operation. The Supervisory
Committee was not aware of any action which would result in a
breach of laws or regulations or the Articles of Association or
would damage the interests of the Company and investors in the
Company.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Financial position of the Company

During the reporting period, the Supervisory Committee further
enhanced its internal control, especially the examination of the
financial system. The Company has established a sound system on
external investment, asset transfer and connected transactions,
etc. In its operation, the Company observed the relevant laws and
regulations of the PRC and the relevant provisions of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC"). On the control of
the movement of funds and administrative expenses, the
Company strictly controlled on each grade which ensured the
normal operation of the Company and avoided financial risk.

The Supervisory Committee was of the view that the procedures
adopted by the Board in preparing and considering the annual
financial report of the Company are in compliance with the laws,
administrative regulations and stipulations of the CSRC. The
contents of the report gave a true, accurate and complete view of
the actual situation of the listed company and do not contain false
statements, misleading representations or material omissions.

There was no use of proceeds this year.

Acquisition and disposal of assets of the Company
During the reporting period, the Company’s acquisitions and
disposals of assets were conducted in such a way where the
approval procedures were lawful, at reasonable considerations,
and under effective decision-making, benefiting the integration of
resources of the Company and aligning with the Company’s
development strategies. No insider dealing or other actions which
would damage the interests of the shareholders or cause any asset
loss occurred or emerged.

Material connected transactions

During the reporting period, the connected transactions of the
Company were conducted under the principle of fairness and the
procedures of the transactions were in compliance with laws and
regulations. The Supervisory Committee is not aware of any action
which would damage the interests of the Company and the
shareholders.
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The Supervisory Committee has no disagreement on the matters EEglRERNNEEFESE
supervised during the reporting period. Ly
Lu Wenwu Bx®
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee EFegFE
Weifang, Shandong Province IR &
28 March 2018 —ET-N\F=ZA=Z+\H
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has always regarded the consistent maintenance of an excellent,
solid and reasonable corporate governance structure as its top priority.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has reviewed its
corporate governance documents and is of the view that the Company has
fully complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Corporate Governance Code”) set out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules other than Code A.2.1, which requires that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be two separate roles and should not be
performed by the same individual, and that certain directors of the Company
did not attend all of the Company’s annual general meeting and extraordinary
general meeting, in 2017 as required under code provisions A.6.7 and E.1.2 of
the Corporate Governance Code due to other important work-related affairs.
Currently, Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan") serves as the Chairman as well as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Despite such deviation, the directors
believe that the combination of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer can promote the efficient formulation and implementation of
the Company’s strategies which will enable the Group to grasp business
opportunities efficiently and promptly. The Company considers that through
the supervision of its board and its independent non-executive directors, there
is adequate balance of power and authority in place.

The directors believe that the Articles of Association, the scope of
responsibilities of the Audit Committee, the scope of responsibilities of the
Supervisory Committee and the codes on securities dealings by directors and
certain executives, which constitute the basis for the regular codes on
corporate governance of the Company, have covered the principles and the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. In respect of the following
areas, our internal corporate governance documents are more stringent than
the Corporate Governance Code:

1. In addition to the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, the Company has also established the Strategic
Development and Investment Committee (the “SDIC").

2. All members of the Audit Committee are Independent Non-executive
Directors, of whom Mr. Wang Gongyong, the Chairman of the
committee, holds the relevant professional qualification or professional
knowledge related to accounting or financial management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include, among other things, formulating
the Company’s overall strategies, setting management targets, regulating
internal controls and financial management, and supervising the
management’s performance, while the day-to-day operations and
management are delegated by the Board to the executives of the Company.

The Board currently comprises 14 directors, whose details are set out on pages
30 to 34 of this annual report. The Board currently includes six executive
directors, three non-executive directors and five independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Tan Xuguang (Chairman and CEQ), Mr. Zhang Quan,
Mr. Xu Xinyu, Mr. Sun Shaojun, Mr. Yuan Hongming and Mr. Yan Jianbo
(Executive Directors), Mr. Wang Yuepu, Mr. Jiang Kui and Mr. Gordon Riske
(Non-executive Directors), Mr. Loh Yih, Mr. Zhang Zhong, Mr. Wang
Gongyong, Mr. Ning Xiangdong and Mr. Li Hongwu (Independent Non-
executive Directors).

The Company has formulated and implemented a “Diversity Policy regarding
Members of the Board of Directors” to support the attainment of strategic
goals and the needs for sustainable development. The composition of the
Board of Directors will be based on a range of diversity elements, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, race,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. Final decisions
will be made based upon the merits of the individuals and his or her
contributions to be made to the Board of Directors.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers each of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

The Board has notified each of the directors and supervisors in advance that
they should not trade in the securities of the Company within the period as
stipulated under the Listing Rules. All directors and supervisors confirmed that
they were in compliance with the Listing Rules in this respect.

Other than their working relationships with the Company, none of the
directors, supervisors or the senior management has any financial, business or
family relationship or any relationship in other material aspects with each
other.

Other than the service contracts entered into by them or as otherwise disclosed
in this annual report, none of the directors or the supervisors has any personal
and substantive interest, direct or indirect, in the material contracts entered
into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during 2017.
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The terms of office of Mr. Yuan Hongming, Mr. Yan lJianbo and Mr. Li
Hongwu commenced on 8 June 2017 and shall end at the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2017. The terms of office of Mr. Li Dakai and Mr. Zhang Zhenhua commenced
on 30 June 2015 and ended on 29 March 2017. Each of the other executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors was
appointed for a term from 30 June 2015 to the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company attached great importance to the continuous professional
development of the directors and paid close attention to and actively
organized relevant trainings for the directors. Each of the directors of the
Company actively participated in various special trainings in respect to
corporate governance and directors’ responsibilities in full compliance with
Code A.6.5 of Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Hong Kong Listing Rules and regulatory requirements of the PRC.

In 2017, the Board reviewed and revised, where necessary, the corporate
governance policies and practice of the Company, reviewed and supervised the
training and continuing professional development attended by the directors
and senior management, reviewed and supervised the Company’s policies and
practice in its compliance with laws and regulations, reviewed and supervised
the code of conduct of employees and directors, and reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.

In 2017, the Company held eight Board meetings. The principal activities of
the Board in 2017 were as follows:

o Review of the annual and interim results of the Company;
o Review of the auditors’ report, internal control audit report, final
financial report, financial budget report and corporate social

responsibilities report of the Company;

o Review of the annual profit distribution, interim dividend and the 2016
final dividend distribution proposal;

o Consideration and approval of continuing connected transactions;
o Consideration and approval of the Company’s banking facilities;
o Consideration and approval of the amendments to the Articles of

Association and the Rules of Procedure for General Meetings of Weichai
Power Co., Ltd;

o Consideration and approval of the provision of financial guarantee to
subsidiaries;

o Consideration and approval of the dealings in derivatives by subsidiaries;

o Consideration and approval of the connected transactions for the capital

increase together with related parties.
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The total remuneration of the directors in 2017, including the basic salary,
performance-linked salary, incentive salary and discretionary bonus, amounted
to approximately RMB8.0 million. Independent non-executive directors were
only entitled to receive director’s fees but not other salary or remuneration. For
details of the remuneration of directors, please refer to Note V.29 to the
financial statements of the Company.

AupiT COMMITTEE
An Audit Committee has been established by the Board.

The Audit Committee is principally responsible for supervising the Company’s
internal audit system and its implementation, reviewing the Company’s
financial controls, risk management and internal control policies and systems
as well as material connected transactions and proposing the engagement or
removal of external auditor. It is also responsible for the communications
between the internal auditor and the external auditor as well as review of
financial information of the Company and the disclosure thereof.

The Audit Committee comprises all the independent non-executive directors,
currently including Mr. Loh Yih, Mr. Zhang Zhong, Mr. Wang Gongyong, Mr.
Ning Xiangdong and Mr. Li Hongwu. As Mr. Wang Gongyong has the
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in financial matters, he
acts as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are aligned with the recommendations set out in “A Guide
for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the reporting period. Details
of the attendance are set out on page 91 of this annual report.

The major work accomplished by the Audit Committee during the year are as
follows:

o Review of the annual, interim financial statements of the Group, as well
as the management recommendations furnished by the external auditors
and responses from the Company’s management;

o Review of the accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group
and related matters;

o Formulating independent directors’ opinions on connected transactions,
external guarantee and internal control self-evaluation report;

. Assist the Board to monitor the Group’s financial control, internal audit
and risk management evaluation;

o Determine the remuneration of external audit service provider.
Throughout the period under review, the Audit Committee discharged its

responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the financial results, financial control,
and internal control and risk management system of the Group.
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In accordance with the requirements of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the
Audit Committee has reviewed the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The auditors of the Company have audited the financial statements and have
issued an unqualified auditors’ report.

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE

The Strategic Development and Investment Committee (“SDIC”) has been
established by the Board.

The SDIC is principally responsible for examining and reviewing the Company’s
strategic plans, monitoring the implementation of strategic planning, and
facilitating timely adjustments to the Company’s strategies and governance
structure.

The SDIC currently comprises Mr. Tan Xuguang (Chairman of the Board and of
the SDIC), Mr. Wang Yuepu, Mr. Zhang Quan, Mr. Xu Xinyu, Mr. Sun Shaojun
Mr. Yuan Hongming and Mr. Yan Jianbo.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for the recommendation to the
Board of the remuneration packages and terms of employment of directors,
supervisors and senior management of the Company. The Committee also
determines the relevant remuneration policy for directors, supervisors and
senior management of the Company and matters relating to their participation
in incentive schemes operated by the Company.

During the reporting period, the Remuneration Committee of the Company
held one meeting. The first meeting of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company in 2017 was convened on 13 March 2017, during which the matters
regarding the operation incentives for senior management and core members
of the Company for year 2016 were reviewed. Mr. Tan Xuguang, Mr. Zhang
Zhong and Mr. Loh Yih, all being directors, attended this meeting of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one executive director and
two independent non-executive directors, being Mr. Zhang Zhong (chairman
of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Tan Xuguang and Mr. Loh Yih.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board.

During the reporting period, the Nomination Committee of the Company held
two meetings as follows:

1. On 9 March 2017, the first meeting in 2017 of the Nomination
Committee of the Company was held, on which the resolutions on the
proposed appointment of Mr. Yuan Hongming and Mr. Yan Jianbo as
directors of the Company and the resolution on the proposed
appointment of Mr. Li Hongwu as an independent director of the
Company were considered and approved.

2. On 1 September 2017, the second meeting in 2017 of the Nomination
Committee of the Company was held, on which the resolutions on the
proposed appointment of Mr. Yuan Hongming and Mr. Yan Jianbo as
executive presidents of the Company were considered and approved.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive directors and one executive director, including Mr. Zhang Zhong
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Xu Xinyu, Mr. Wang Gongyong
and Mr. Li Hongwu. The meetings of the Nomination Committee were
arranged and held on an as-needed basis. The Nomination Committee will
identify qualified candidates to fill the Board's membership whenever such
vacancy arises. It will also nominate such candidates for the Board to consider,
regularly review the composition of the Board and make suggestions as to any
change in the membership of the Board that may be required.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee consists of three members, with one Supervisor
being elected from the staff as a representative of employees and the other
two elected by the shareholders of the Company. The Supervisory Committee
is responsible for supervision of the Board and its members and the senior
management of the Company, so as to prevent them from abusing their
authorities and infringing the interests of the Company, its shareholders and
staff. The size and composition of the Supervisory Committee are in
compliance with the requirements of the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC. The Supervisory Committee held four meetings during the year to carry
out its supervision on behalf of the shareholders in respect of the Company’s
financial matters and the lawfulness and compliance in respect of the
discharge of duties by the directors and senior management of the Company.
The members of the Supervisory Committee attended all Board meetings and
general meetings of the Company and diligently performed their supervisory
duties.
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Attendances at meetings of the Shareholders, Board, Supervisory Committee
and special committees (attendance in person/number of meetings) during the

PHREBHRS (&)
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year are as follows: T
General Supervisory Audit
Meeting Board Committee ~ Committee
Name s BRRAE Exg EEg® ERKZES
Executive Directors HITES
Tan Xuguang ENips 7/8%
Zhang Quan R R 1/6 8/8
Xu Xinyu BEE 1/6 7/80
Sun Shaojun T? LE 6/82
Yuan Hongming (appointed on 8 June 2017) FRHRZZE—tFESANB LA 5/60
Yan Jianbo (appointed on 8 June 2017) }g‘x% AR ZZ—+EANBLEAE) 5/6(1
Li Dakai FRAM -E—L%F
(resigned on 29 March 2017) =A-t+hBEMF i 17
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Wang Yuepu IAE 7/80
Jiang Kui I =% 4/6 6/82
Gordon Riske Gordon Riske 6/82
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Loh Yih E B 4/6 8/8 4/4
Zhang Zhong & £ 7/80 4/4
Wang Gongyong TER 1/6 7/80 4/4
Ning Xiangdong BRE 4/6 /81 4/4
Li Hongwu (appointed on 8 June 2017) FHRRMR-_ZF—tE~ANB LA 2/6 6/6 22
Zhang Zhenhua RREMR-_Z—+ &
(resigned on 29 March 2017) “AZThHED n 171 ”n
Supervisors Ex
Lu Wenwu BEXR 6/6 4/4
Wu Hongwei (appointed on 30 August 2017) REBRZZ—+FNR=THLME) 7 2/2
Jiang Jianfang (resigned on 30 August 2017) BEFMRZZ—tFNA=THEE 11 22
Ma Changhai 588 6/6 4/4

According to the requirements under Code I(d) of the Corporate Governance
Code, the attendance of alternate directors shall not be included in the
attendance of the relevant directors.

Notes:

(1) In addition, the director also appointed another director as his representative to attend
and vote at one meeting of the board on his behalf.

2) In addition, the director also appointed another director as his representative to attend
and vote at two meetings of the board on his behalf.
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GENERAL MEETING AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The shareholders’ meeting is the highest authority of the Company, providing
an opportunity for direct communications and building a sound relationship
between the Board and the shareholders of the Company. Therefore, the
Company places great attention to such meetings. In 2017, the Company
convened six general meetings. Matters reviewed and approved at the said
meetings include the following:

I. FIRST EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING IN
2017 HELD oON 8 FEBRUARY 2017

Special resolutions:

1.

To consider and approve the acquisition of Weichai Power
Hydraulic Technology Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary, by way
of absorption

To consider and approve the acquisition of Weichai (Weifang)
Medium-duty Diesel Engine Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary,
by way of absorption

IT. 2016 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING HELD ON 8
JUNE 2017

Ordinary resolutions:

1.

92

WEICHAI PowER Co., LTD.

To consider and approve the Annual Report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2016

To consider and approve the Report of the Board of Directors of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016

To consider and approve the Report of the Supervisory Committee
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016

To consider and approve the audited financial statements of the
Company and the Auditors’ Report for the year ended 31
December 2016

To consider and approve the B R E #% (final financial report)
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016

To consider and approve the BAf§TEE#RE (financial budget
report) of the Company for the year ending 31 December 2017
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10.

11.

12.

To consider and approve the re-appointment of Ernst & Young
Hua Ming LLP (Z X ER S MEHAE®REBRERE))

the auditor of the Company for the year ending 31 December
2017 and to authorise the Directors to determine their
remuneration

To consider and approve the re-appointment of || 3 #0115 & =t Al
=T (% E B A %) (Shandong Hexin Accountants LLP) as
the internal control auditor of the Company for the year ending
31 December 2017

To consider and approve the granting of a mandate to the Board
of Directors for payment of interim dividend to the shareholders of
the Company for the year ending 31 December 2017

To consider and approve the amendments to the Rules of
Procedure for General Meetings of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

To consider and approve the election of Mr. Li Hongwu as an
independent director of the Company

To consider and approve the election of directors of the Company
- To consider and approve the election of Mr. Yuan

Hongming as a director of the Company

- To consider and approve the election of Mr. Yan Jianbo as a
director of the Company

Special resolutions

1.

To consider and approve the distribution of profit of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2016

To consider and approve the granting of a general mandate to the
Board of Directors to issue new Shares

To consider and approve the amendments to the Articles of
Association of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.
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[II. FIRST CLASS MEETING OF THE HOLDERS OF A
SHARES IN 2017 HELD onN 8 JuNE 2017

Special resolution

To consider and approve the distribution of profit of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2016

IV.

94

FIRST CLASS MEETING OF THE HOLDERS OF H
SHARES IN 2017 HELD oN 8 JuNE 2017

Special resolution

To consider and approve the distribution of profit of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2016

SECOND EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING 1IN
2017 HeELD oN 30 Aucust 2017

Ordinary resolutions:

1.

WEICHAI PowER Co.,

To consider and approve the issue of bonds by non-PRC wholly-
owned subsidiary

To consider and approve the grant of guarantee by the Company
for the issue of bonds and related matters by non-PRC wholly-
owned subsidiary

To consider and approve the connected transactions for the supply
of base engines, gas engine parts, provision of utility and labour
services, technology development services and related products
and services by the Company and its subsidiaries (and/or
associates) to Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co.,
Ltd.

To consider and approve the connected transactions for the
purchase of gas engines, gas engine parts, labour services and
related products and services by the Company and its subsidiaries
(and/or associates) from Weichai Power Westport New Energy
Engine Co., Ltd.

To consider and approve the connected transactions for the
provision of logistics and storage services by Weichai Power
(Weifang) Intensive Logistics Co., Ltd. (and/or its associates) to
Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.

To consider and approve the connected transactions for the
leasing of factory buildings by the Company to Weichai Power
Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.
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7. To consider and approve the amendment to the agreement
governing connected transactions for the purchase of parts and
components of vehicles, scrap steel and related products and
labour services by Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited
and its subsidiaries and Weichai Power Freshen Air Technology
Co., Ltd. from Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd. and its
associates

8.  To consider and approve the election of Mr. Wu Hongwei as a
non-employee representative supervisor in the fourth session of
the supervisory committee of the Company

9.  To consider and approve the grant of the guarantee by the
Company for the financing to be made by a non-PRC wholly-owned
subsidiary

VI. THIRD EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING IN
2017 HeELD oN 30 NovEMBER 2017

Special resolution:
To consider and approve the amendments to certain terms of the
Articles of Association

Ordinary resolution:
To consider and approve the grant of the guarantee by the Company for
the financing to be made by a non-PRC wholly-owned subsidiary

SHAREHOLDERS® RIGHTS

Shareholders of the Company holding more than 10% of the shares of the
Company either individually or collectively requesting the convening of an
extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting shall proceed in accordance
with the procedures set forth in Article 104 of the Articles of Association.

Pursuant to Article 74 of the Articles of Association, shareholders of the
Company who hold, individually or collectively, more than 3% of the
Company’s shares shall have the right to propose a motion to the Company
for consideration at the general meeting of the Company. Shareholders who
hold, individually or collectively, more than 3% of the Company’s shares may
propose a provisional motion in writing to the Board of Directors 16 days prior
to the general meeting. Within two days upon the receipt of the proposed
motion, the Board of Directors shall issue a supplementary notice of the
general meeting to announce the content of the provisional motion.

Shareholders of the Company are welcome to send their enquiries to the
Board via our Securities Department, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Information” in this annual report.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE
CANDIDATES FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the requirement of the Articles of Association, any shareholder
who, by itself or jointly, holding shares representing more than 3% of the
voting rights of the Company for 180 days or more consecutively shall have
the right to nominate candidates for director, the number of directors in each
nomination shall not exceed one-fifth of the total number of directors and the
total number of nominees. The number of shares directly or indirectly held by
each shareholder cannot be further subdivided in order to propose a motion
by himself or jointly with other persons.

The period for service of notices in writing by shareholders to the Company of
the intention to propose a candidate for election as a director in accordance
with the Articles of Association and of such candidate’s consent to be elected
shall be at least 7 days, which shall commence from the day after the despatch
of the notice convening the general meeting for the election of directors and
shall end on the date which is 16 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Pursuant to the requirements of Guidelines for the Articles of Association of
Listed Companies (2016 revision) ({_E T A & & 128 5] (2016 F £ 5]))),
Shenzhen Stock Exchange Listed Company Shareholders’ General Meeting
Internet Voting Implementation Rules (2016 revision) (ORI & 5 X 5 Fr £
RAIRRAREPEHZEHMA (2016 F £ 5]))), and the relevant laws
and regulations, and taking into consideration the actual conditions and
operation and development needs of the Company, as approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the 2016 annual general meeting held on 8
June 2017, certain amendments to the Articles of Association were made on,
inter alia, the means of the holding of general meetings and the procedures
on the confirmation of the voting results.

Further, as approved by the shareholders of the Company at the 2016 annual
general meeting, the class meeting of the holders of A Shares and the class
meeting of the holders of H Shares held on 8 June 2017, consequential to the
issue of 3,027,099,278 A Shares and 971,520,000 H Shares to the
shareholders of the Company in 21 July 2017, certain articles of the Articles of
Association have been amended to reflected the changes in the registered
capital and the issued share capital of the Company as a result of such bonus
shares issue, and also to reflect certain consequential changes to the
amendment history of the Articles of Association.
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In addition, pursuant to the requirements of {d1 #% |1 58 & Z5 40 4% 2 b+ 11
REAEZZEE (P HIPAABBEFEHNEZRZBENILE
HBHACEERZIHFEERT ARFER A B A ) ("Notice of
the Organisation Department of Shandong Provincial Party Committee and
Shandong Provincial State-owned Assets and Administration Commission on
the forwarding of the ‘Notice of the Organisation Department of the
Communist Party of China and State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council regarding the Promotion of
the Incorporation of Party Building Works into the Articles of Associations of
State-owned Enterprises’”) and{ £ |L R A BHELZZESMNEE D E
2 4 {E R E AV 41) (“Notice of the Shandong Provincial State-owned
Assets and Administration Commission regarding several issues on the Party
Building Works of Provincially-managed Enterprises”), and in compliance with
the PRC Company Law ({ff 2 A R £ B 2 73%)), Guidelines for the
Articles of Association of Listed Companies (2016 revision) ({ - 2 7l & &
#53| (20164 {£5]))) and the Mandatory Provisions for Companies Listing
Overseas ((EJ3E 5D £ A 7 Z 12 % 6 58)) and other relevant laws and
regulations, taking into consideration the actual circumstances of the
Company, as approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 30 November 2017, certain
amendments to the Articles of Association for the incorporation of Party-
building works into the Articles of Association were made.

Please refer to the circulars of the Company dated 20 April 2017 and 16
October 2017 for further details on the above amendments to the Articles of
Association.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate system of
internal control to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests.

Internal control, including a defined management structure with limits of
authority, is designed to help achieve business objectives, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use, maintain proper accounting records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication. The purpose
of such system is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material mis-statement or loss, and to manage, rather than eliminate, risks of
failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Company has an internal audit function. The management maintains and
monitors the system of controls on an ongoing basis. The Audit Committee,
which was delegated by the Board, reviews the Group’s risk management and
internal control policies and system at least once a year.
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During the year, based on the evaluations made by the management, the
Audit Committee reviewed and was satisfied that nothing had come to its
attention to cause the Audit Committee to believe that the system of risk
management and internal control covering financial, operational, compliance
and all other material controls of the Group was inadequate, and there is an
ongoing process to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks faced by the
Group. The Audit Committee considered that the risk management and
internal control system of the Group is effective and adequate.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MoDeL CoDE

During the year, the Company adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors aim to present the financial statements of the Group in
accordance with the statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The directors ensure that financial statements of the Group are
issued in a timely manner so that the final and interim results of the Group are
announced within the periods of three months and two months, respectively,
after the end of the relevant periods prescribed under the Listing Rules.

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and audited by the external
auditors, Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP. The directors acknowledge their
responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of the Group and
presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s
performance and prospects. They are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern. The statement of the Auditors about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company has engaged Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP as the auditor of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2017, an amount of RMB12.6
million was paid/payable to Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP for their audit
service.
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AUDITORS  REPORT

EY:

I.

IT.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2018) Shen Zi No. 60729920 _B01
Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

To the shareholders of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.
(the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated and the Company’s
balance sheets as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated and the
Company’s income statements, the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of changes in shareholders’ equity and the consolidated and
the Company'’s statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated and the Company’s financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated and the
Company’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
("ASBEs").

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing
(“CSAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with China Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants (the “Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

LIKE(2018)F F5£60729920_B015%
R ORBERAT

HEBHIRDERDITDZEKRER

- BIE

BAIRET T LB NI D B R A R ISR
= BE2017E12A31BNAHEATN
BEAGBER  2017FENAHEARFE
® - BRRESZFHRANRESRERARLIEH
SRR MIEE ©

BMIRE - EIEHEEE DI D BRAE
SRR T AEER S MIRRBEE S 4R
FIRTERE - DA R THESNRDER
NE017F12A31BNA R ARG
ARILLA R 201 7F WA B 2 A RIS & KR FI
BERE °

RSt R RAVE R

BRI B & 7T AR ERI A R E B
117 &R ITIE - BETHREW[ M S5 E
B HMERBEFNEE L OE—FRAL TR
MEGELERTHEE - RBPEEMES
BMER SE 812 T R BAPVB IS E
MARAR - WETTTBEEET AR
B - BfIEE - ROEDRHEAEEER
D EER  REREFERRETER -

- FRREBESSIR
PRBSEERAMREREAE  RAY
AR RRBA R AEBNRE < BLE
R ) I A S B 7 R SR B R T TR AT A AR
BHEAAEER BRMTHELFAEEE
RER - AMYTRE - FEEE RN
A Rt A AR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 43R 99



AubpiToRS” REPORT (CONTINUED)

100

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2018) Shen Zi No. 60729920 _B01
Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit

opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Key audit matter

RRETER

Bad debt provision for accounts receivable
FEM BRI AR

As at 31 December 2017, the gross carrying amount of
accounts receivable in the consolidated financial statements
was RMB15,005,650,079.08, and the gross bad debt provision
amounted to RMB1,433,114,728.64. Receivables which are
individually significant and receivables which are not individually
significant but there is objective evidence Indicating impairment
are individually assessed by the management of Weichai Power
Co., Ltd. (the "Management") for impairment. Bad debt
provision is made based on the shortfall of the present value
of future cash flow as compared to its carrying amount. Other
than receivables for which provision for bad debts has been
recognized individually, provision for bad debt is recognized by
group based on the actual loss rate of identical or similar group
in prior year or with similar distinctive credit risk characteristics,
taking into account the current situation. Calculation of the
recoverable amount of accounts receivable requires judgments
and estimate to be made by the Management.

Disclosures of accounts receivable and bad debt provision are
set out in Note II1.10 and Note V.4 to the financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REREETHRNMAES

Our procedures in relation to this as part of our audit
included:

For accounts receivable which are individually significant, we
reviewed, on a sampling basis, the bases upon which the
recoverable amounts were arrived at by the Management,
including the Management’s assessment of the credit risks
of customers taking into account the business operation of
the respective customers, market conditions and historical
repayment etc;

For receivables for which provision for bad debt is recognized
by group with similar distinctive credit risk characteristics,
we reviewed the Management’s determination of the
group with similar distinctive credit risk characteristics and
reviewed, on a sampling basis, key information including the
age of the receivables and number of overdue days.

We examined the calculation made by the Management in
arriving at the bad debt provision for receivables.
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Key audit matter

FARETEIE !
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEIBEET PR NAES !

Provision for decline in value of inventories

FEKERERE

As at 31 December 2017, the gross carrying amount of
inventories in the consolidated financial statements was
RMB20,744,696,675.18, and the gross bad debt provision
amounted to RMB893,874,211.51. At the balance sheet
date, inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. The Management'’s judgments and estimates
are required for determining the inventory provision on the
basis of clear evidence and taking into account the purpose
of holding the inventories, effect of subsequent events and
other factors. The difference between the actual outcome and
original estimate will affect the carrying amount of inventories
during the estimated revision period.

Disclosures of provision for decline in value of inventories are
set out in Note Ill.11 and Note V.9 to the financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to this as part of our audit
included:

We checked the age and turnover of inventories;

We checked the approach adopted by the Management in
assessing inventory provision;

We compared the net realizable value, which were
determined as the selling price net of sales rebate, cost
estimated to be incurred up to completion, estimated selling
expenses and tax, to the carrying cost to identify the higher

oneg,;

We examined the calculation made by the Management in
arriving at the inventory provision.
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Key audit matter

FARETEIE !
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREETTRNAES

Assessment for impairment of goodwill and trademark rights with an indefinite useful life

R R I o T RO R P A,

As at 31 December 2017, included in the consolidated
financial statements were goodwill of gross carrying amount
of RMB22,821,264,062.42, provision for impairment of
RMB238,071,400.00, trademark rights with an indefinite
useful life of gross carrying amount of R\MB7,588,880,383.60
and provision for impairment of RMB67,099,780.00. Goodwill
and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life shall be
tested for impairment every year, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that the asset may be impaired. The
test for impairment of goodwill and trademark rights with
an indefinite useful life involves complicated procedures and
the Management'’s selection and adoption of key parameters
including estimation of future market and economic conditions,
discount rate, long-term average growth rate etc.

Disclosures of assessment for impairment of goodwill and
trademark rights with an indefinite useful life are set out in
Notes I1.18, 19 and Note V.20 to the financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to this as part of our audit
included:

We examined the Management'’s forecast of future cashflow
and its calculation of the present value of future cashflow;

We took into account the actual operation of the asset
groups or sets of asset groups and market analysis to review

cashflow forecast;

We engaged valuation specialists for assisting in the review
of valuation approaches, models and key parameters;

We checked the disclosures of assessment for impairment of

goodwill and trademark rights with an indefinite useful life
in the financial statements.
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Key audit matter

FARETEIE !
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEIBEET PR NAES !

Business of leasing of forklift trucks

REEEER

Leasing of forklift trucks is a principal business segment of
KION GROUP AG, a subsidiary of Weichai Power Co., Ltd. The
forklift trucks leasing business of KION GROUP AG primarily
include 3 categories: direct leasing, sale and leaseback sub-
leases and sale with risk. The categorization of leasing business
and the recognition of revenue from the business of sale with
risk involves judgments. The accounting treatment becomes
complicated for the various categories of leasing business.

For policies on forklift trucks leasing business, please refer to
Notes IIl.15 and 27 to the financial statements. For disclosures
of forklift trucks leasing business, please refer to Notes V.13,
16 and 38 and Note XIV.
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Our procedures in relation to this as part of our audit
included:

For the workflow of forklift trucks leasing business, we
understood and tested the internal control processes,
including the engagement of information technology
specialists for testing the internal control of the system of
forklift trucks leasing business;

We performed test of details on a sampling basis, including
the examination of whether the relevant data available from
the system of forklift trucks leasing business agreed to the
original invoices, evaluated the judgments made by the
Management on the categorization of leases, re-calculated
the booked amounts of relevant assets and liabilities etc.;

We performed confirmation procedures as well as cut-off
procedures.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Management is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MANAGEMENT
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in accordance with ASBEs, and for designing,
implementing and maintaining such internal control as the Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting, unless the Management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Company'’s financial reporting process.
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